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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good morning,

          3  everybody.  I'm Council Member Stanley Michels,

          4  Chairman of the Environmental Protection Committee,

          5  and I want to welcome all of you to this important

          6  hearing.

          7                 Today we will be having our annual

          8  oversight hearing on the Mayor's Management Report.

          9  For your information, we refer to it as the MMR, for

         10  Fiscal Year 1999.  As we have done in the past,

         11  today we will probe several areas of the Department

         12  of Environmental Protection's operations as we

         13  review the information provided by the Department in

         14  the MMR.  The Council has analyzed the MMR as it

         15  relates to the Department and has produced the

         16  document that is available to those in attendance

         17  today, including the agency, itself.

         18                 The first witness is the

         19  distinguished Commissioner of the Department of

         20  Environmental Protection, Joel Miele, and sitting

         21  next to him is Diana Chapin, the First Deputy

         22  Commissioner. Welcome, as usual, and I wanted to say

         23  that we have here with us, Council Member Sabini

         24  from Queens, and from time to time other Council

         25  members will be arriving, with Jim Gennaro to my
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          2  left, Allison Sacks to my right, Bob Gormley, and

          3  Steve Solomon.

          4                 Commence firing.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Thank you very

          6  much, Mr. Chairman.  Good morning, Chairman and

          7  members of the Committee of Environmental

          8  Protection.  Thank you for the opportunity to

          9  address the Committee concerning the agency's

         10  performance.

         11                 Before I get started, obviously, on

         12  my right is First Deputy Commissioner Diana Chapin,

         13  on my left is the Chief of Staff and Special

         14  Counsel, Charles Sturcken.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I would have

         16  identified him, only he wasn't sitting there when I

         17  called.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, and we will

         19  ask each of our responders to identify themselves

         20  before they make their comments.

         21                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         22  address the Committee concerning the agency's

         23  performance.  The three most important things we do,

         24  our core missions, are:

         25                 1.  Obtaining a potable water supply
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          2  from 2,000 square mile watershed.

          3                 2.  Distributing that supply to

          4  consumers.

          5                 3.  Providing for storm and sanitary

          6  drainage within the five boroughs.

          7                 Each of these three missions, as well

          8  as many other agency tasks, is broken down into the

          9  indicators, goals and performance values that

         10  comprise the MMR.

         11                 In my testimony, this morning, I will

         12  supplement the comprehensive MMR performance

         13  measurement by highlighting four agency projects

         14  that are essential to our core missions and that we

         15  believe to be of interest to Chairman Michels and

         16  the Committee.

         17                 The first is an update on the

         18  Watershed Memorandum of Agreement, otherwise known

         19  as the MOA, which is now a few months past the

         20  midpoint of its five- year duration.

         21                 The second is a review of the Catch

         22  Basin Hood and Hanger Program, of which members may

         23  be less aware.  Although catch basins are a simple,

         24  static part of the infrastructure, they are critical

         25  to proper drainage because they are the outlets for
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          2  the rainwater flowing off the streets.  They also

          3  capture street litter, preventing it from washing

          4  into the waterways.  In years past they have been

          5  responsible for as much as 30 percent of service

          6  complaints received agency wide.

          7                 The third project I will highlight is

          8  DEP Staten Island Bluebelt Program, and for those

          9  who are not familiar with it, the Bluebelt preserves

         10  the natural functions of wetlands in conveying,

         11  storing, and filtering storm water.  By preserving

         12  and/or restoring wetlands and water courses, the

         13  City also preserves capital dollars through reducing

         14  the need to construct the conventional storm

         15  drainage in a few drainage basins in mid- and

         16  southern Staten Island.

         17                 And finally the last project I will

         18  review this morning is our largest public works

         19  project, the Third Water Tunnel.

         20                 On January 21st, 1997, Mayor

         21  Giuliani, myself and representatives of state and

         22  federal government initialed the agreement which

         23  secured a five- year renewable waiver from the

         24  filtration requirements of the Surface Water

         25  Treatment Rule promulgated by the United States
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          2  Environmental Protection Agency in 1989.  This

          3  waiver only applies to the water obtained from the

          4  Catskill and Delaware Watersheds, which are those

          5  located west of the Hudson River in the counties of

          6  Ulster, Greene, Schoharie, Delaware and Sullivan.

          7  If we had not received this waiver, the United

          8  States Government would have forced the City to

          9  agree to construct a filtration plant capable of

         10  treating about a billion gallons of water per day.

         11  Although we cannot now precisely estimate the cost

         12  of such a plant, it would be in the range of four to

         13  six billion dollars to construct, and one to two

         14  hundred million dollars per year to operate, plus

         15  interest payments on the thirty year bonds issued to

         16  pay for the construction.  These costs would, of

         17  necessity, be borne by the ratepayers, should the

         18  plant have to be built.

         19                 In return for this five- year waiver,

         20  the City agreed to a series of very challenging,

         21  costly and complicated obligations.  These

         22  obligations are the subject of intense scrutiny from

         23  numerous regulators and public officials, but

         24  especially from the United States Government, which

         25  can revoke the waiver if substantive obligations are
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          2  not met.  It is a source of some pride to myself and

          3  my staff that we have continued to meet all the

          4  necessary obligations, thereby ensuring the

          5  continuation of the waiver.

          6                 The Committee knows from our prior

          7  testimony that MOA obligations may be divided into

          8  four principal areas, as outlined on the chart

          9  behind me.  I will concentrate my remarks on just

         10  three of them, land acquisition and stewardship,

         11  enforcement, and partnership programs.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you have

         13  present recollection to what the fourth one is?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's on the

         15  chart.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Oh, I'm sorry,

         17  okay, I see it.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  As of November

         19  20th, 1999, the City has purchased 8,970 acres of

         20  land at a cost of $28.1 million. In addition, we,

         21  personally, have under contract 9,471 additional

         22  acres worth $25.6 million when we close title.

         23  These are all high priority, acquisitions because of

         24  their size, location and natural features.  The

         25  development of parcels in the high- priority
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          2  category is a more serious threat to long- term

          3  water quality.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you include

          5  in there the environmental easements?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, we will

          7  talk about that as we get further along.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is that

          9  included in this --

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  These are

         11  included in  - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  No, in these

         13  figures here?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Our land

         17  acquisition staff, therefore, solicited parcels in

         18  the high- priority category first.           For

         19  reasons I explained in my June 15th testimony before

         20  this Committee, both the MOA and the actual

         21  Filtration Avoidance Waiver set land acquisition

         22  targets in terms of acres solicited.  Accordingly,

         23  the MMR reviews our achievement with respect to

         24  those goals, and the land acquisition chart showing

         25  the summation of what we have got, again is behind
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          2  me.  Since the MOA measures goals in terms of

          3  twelve- month periods beginning January 21st, 1997,

          4  which was the date the agreement was signed, and

          5  every 21st of January thereafter, and the MMR

          6  generally measures goals in terms of City fiscal

          7  years, it can be confusing.  To my mind, the most

          8  important fact is that as of today we have solicited

          9  over 145,000 of the total 350,000 acres the City

         10  agreed to solicit by the year 2007.  I would like to

         11  point out here an error on page 87 of Volume I of

         12  the MMR.  Some members of staff may have been

         13  confused by the first bullet on that page, which

         14  reports that, "A total of 53,900 acres were acquired

         15  in Fiscal 1999."  That sentence should read, we

         16  solicited a total of 53,900 acres in Fiscal 1999,

         17  not acquired.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is quite a

         19  mistake.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, it's quite

         21  a difference, but it just goes to show you one word

         22  is absolutely critical in a large report like that.

         23                 As part of the MOA the City revised,

         24  strengthened, and updated the 1953 version of its

         25   "Rules and Regulations Regarding the Use of Water
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          2  Supply Lands," and the regulatory score card is up

          3  on the charts behind me.  Since the MOA start date

          4  of January 21st, 1997, we have hired 52 new police

          5  officer, with 12 in the pipeline, and 11 more in the

          6  process of being hired, to raise our uniformed force

          7  from 59 officers to 134.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Ultimately, how

          9  many do you think will you have when you have

         10  finished it all around?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is the

         13  amount.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is the full

         15  100 percent compliment, and interestingly enough,

         16  while we had, as I told you in prior years, an

         17  enormous amount of turnover in the force, and we

         18  have had a difficulty in recruiting for the force,

         19  we have been overwhelmed with people who want to be

         20  a part of the DEP Police Force, where having

         21  absolutely no difficulty whatsoever.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How do you

         23  explain that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Pardon me?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How do you
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          2  explain that?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, first of

          4  all, since we have heightened the benefits for the

          5  force and heightened the numbers in the force, it

          6  becomes a different force than it was before, it's

          7  now competitive with the Police Department's

          8  fiscally, that is with compensation for the officers

          9  themselves.  It will become a more professional

         10  force, it will become a more highly trained force,

         11  it will become a force with more assets that are

         12  needed for the type of enforcement that they do, and

         13  consequently, people are interested in being a part

         14  of it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Will it be a

         16  career path also?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, absolutely.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That sounds, to

         19  me, a logical explanation.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  By the way, all

         21  of that is included in the little pamphlets that you

         22  got today with the packet, the numbers that we're

         23  talking about.

         24                 We have issued 1,302 notices of

         25  violation, we have issued 809 summonses under the
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          2  New York State Environmental Conservation Law, we

          3  have issued 375 summonses under the New York State

          4  Penal Law, and we have reviewed 3,537 projects for

          5  compliance with the regulations.

          6                 Although the following actions do not

          7  represent achievements of our program, it may be

          8  also relevant to the members that the City has been

          9  the subject of numerous lawsuits on behalf of Putnam

         10  County property- owners, who argued that the City

         11  owes them "compensation" because the new Watershed

         12  Regulations have diminished the value of their

         13  property.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Can I ask you a

         15  question on that?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Sure.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You mentioned

         18  the MOA, does include the various counties, Putnam

         19  is not one of those counties under the MOA?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Not west of the

         21  Hudson, but east of the Hudson.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But it does

         23  include - -

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Putnam and

         25  Westchester are definitely a part of it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It does include

          3  Putnam.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Absolutely.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Because I

          6  noticed that you didn't mention Putnam in there.

          7  Oh, that is right, you didn't mention Westchester,

          8  either.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You mentioned

         11  Ulster, Greene, Schoharie, Delaware, and Sullivan.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Correct.  The

         13  other two counties of Westchester - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Part of Putnam

         15  is included?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And, of course,

         18  all Westchester?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Absolutely.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Parts or most

         21  of Westchester?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  All of

         23  Westchester except for very small areas in the east

         24  and in the west where they're not in the watershed

         25  or in any part of our area.  But the central core of
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          2  Westchester, certainly is, and significant portions

          3  of Putnam County are.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But the Croton

          5  Dam, itself, isn't that located in Westchester

          6  County?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But that is not

          9  included in the watershed area?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, it is.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm thinking of

         12  something else, yes, I understand.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, the

         14  watershed, again, there are three watersheds.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And Delaware,

         16  the Catskill,  -

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Two west of the

         18  Hudson and the one east of the Hudson, the one east

         19  of the Hudson is the Croton Watershed.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  and the

         21  Croton System.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.  Just to

         23  make the point, obviously, we are contesting,

         24  vigorously, these claims that there has been a

         25  diminution in the value of their property and that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  they're entitled to compensation.

          3                 The Committee may remember from prior

          4  testimony that although the City is vigorously

          5  seeking to control pollution in the Catskill and

          6  Delaware Watersheds, we're doing so in partnership

          7  with the local communities, and again, there is a

          8  score card on partnership up on the board that you

          9  can see now.  A measure of our willingness to

         10  cooperate with our upstate neighbors is the $310

         11  million the City has committed to partnership

         12  programs that provide financial and environmental

         13  benefits to upstate residents. Prominent among these

         14  programs are $75 million to upgrade all of the

         15  sewage treatment plants that the City does not own,

         16  $75 million to construct new centralized sewerage

         17  treatment systems, $60 million to the Catskill Fund

         18  for the Future, an organization that will sponsor

         19  responsible economic development in the Catskill

         20  Delaware Watershed, and $13.6 million to inspect and

         21  rehabilitate privately- owned septic systems.  In

         22  Fiscal Year 1999, DEP funded 395 septic system

         23  remediations as compared with 141 remediations in

         24  Fiscal Year 1998.  The success of the septic

         25  remediation program is due in large part to a
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          2  streamlining of the process for bringing a

          3  contractor on board to do the actual work.

          4                 In September, a panel of the National

          5  Research Council, under contract to the New York

          6  City Comptroller, released a comprehensive and far-

          7  reaching study of New York City's watershed

          8  management and protection programs.  The panel

          9  concluded that the City's ambitious and extremely

         10  complex program is a national model for a

         11  cooperative approach to watershed management,

         12  affirming the Giuliani Administration's view that a

         13  balanced approach of regulation and targeted support

         14  of the watershed community is sound public policy.

         15                 The MOA constituted a landmark

         16  achievement in the protection of the City's water

         17  supply.  The City has compiled with the mandates of

         18  the Filtration Avoidance Determination:

         19                 1.  By entering into contracts or

         20  acquiring title to over 18,400 acres.

         21                 2.  By finalizing the Whole Farm

         22  Planning Program.

         23                 3.  By funding the improvement of

         24  individual septic systems.

         25                 4.  By following through on a battery
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          2  of other activities too numerous to mention.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Let me just ask

          4  you a question on the issue of the Whole Farm

          5  Planning Program.  Of course it's something that has

          6  to be within the watershed area.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It is.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But it is my

          9  understanding that that program itself is not in the

         10  MOA.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Is not a part of

         12  the MOA?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is not a part

         14  of the MOA; is that right?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The answer is,

         16  it is outside the MOA, you are correct.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, I just

         18  want to make sure that was correct.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Okay.  In the 34

         20  months since the MOA was signed, DEP has put in

         21  place a formidable water quality protection program

         22  that is the foundation on which we are building a

         23  continuation of our filtration avoidance status for

         24  the West- of Hudson systems.

         25                 If you have followed the MMR
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          2  indicators for DEP over the last few years, you may

          3  have noticed that the number of catch basins cleaned

          4  has increased dramatically from 27,618 in FY 1995 to

          5  66,171 in FY 1998.  The reason for that increase is

          6  that in 1996 we began a multi- phase program to made

          7  sure that catch basins operate more efficiently.

          8  The chart that you are looking at now shows a

          9  typical catch basin.  As we talk about it a little

         10  bit further, I will point out some issues on that

         11  chart.

         12                 Catch basins had become a cause of

         13  concern to us for a couple of reasons.

         14                 1.  We knew we had a lot of them but

         15  we had no reliable count of them all.

         16                 2.  We knew that some of them needed

         17  cleaning or repairs, but we had no accurate list of

         18  which basin needed what.

         19                 3.  Our catch basins were serving as

         20  a disposal chute for cups, bottles and other trash

         21  to wash into the combined sewer system during

         22  rainfalls.  During rainfalls some of the water

         23  collected from the streets washes out into our

         24  waterways.  In the past, the floatable trash went

         25  along with it.  In fact, New York State had accused
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          2  us of violating federal clean water laws because of

          3  the discharge of so- called floatables at the time

          4  of rainstorms.

          5                 In an effort to reduce the quantity

          6  of floatables, we commissioned a series of studies

          7  which confirmed our belief that the debris polluting

          8  the harbor consisted primarily of wood from

          9  deteriorating piers and street litter washing

         10  through sewers and into the harbor during

         11  rainstorms.  Our first step in controlling

         12  floatables was to institute booming and skimming

         13  operations at some outfalls to capture debris.

         14  Based on the Department of Sanitation estimates of

         15  street cleanliness, and the location of large

         16  combined sewer outlet over falls, DEP's staff

         17  identified 23 outfalls as a priority for booming.  A

         18  boom is a floating curtain supported by buoys which

         19  surrounds an outfall.  When floatable objects are

         20  washed out during a rainstorm the boom acts to keep

         21  them trapped. Specially- designed Department of

         22  Environmental boats then visit each boom outfall

         23  after a storm, and these skimmer boats scoop up the

         24  trapped trash, deposit it on the boat, and then the

         25  trash is off- loaded and disposed of with other City
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          2  solid waste.  Boats that we're using are fairly

          3  modern, are pretty high tech, and pretty

          4  specifically targeted technologically for the

          5  purpose for which we intend to use them.

          6                 Further study concluded that another

          7  way to keep litter out of the waterways is to

          8  install catch basin hoods.  Let me, that will do

          9  fine, that is a hood, now you have got an outlet

         10  pipe that runs out into the sewer.  What this does

         11  effectively is by keeping the liquid level at this

         12  point, any material that falls into the catch basin

         13  floats, and if it is a floatable, it floats here,

         14  obviously, it cannot get underneath this barrier and

         15  then down into the sewer.  Anything that doesn't

         16  float sinks to the bottom, and as long as we keep

         17  this cleaned up before this material gets up to this

         18  point, and as long as we, I will get into those

         19  catch basins and clean out the floatable as often as

         20  we can and reset the hoods, we will capture as much

         21  as 75 percent of the material that gets in there.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Of course that

         23  depends upon the attention, that you now have to pay

         24  more attention to the catch basin to keep it clean

         25  now.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well we do pay

          3  attention to them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That will end

          5  up clogging up- -

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We have no

          7  problem with that at all, we can handle that

          8  workload, and in fact, if we get a catch basin that

          9  malfunctions, we usually get a complaint from a

         10  local neighbor, we get out and we take care of the

         11  problem and it is resolved, you know, immediately.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you have any

         13  indication to how long it takes you to clean one out

         14  after you get a neighbor's call?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I can give you

         16  the numbers on that, if you would like.  Oh, do you

         17  mean time frame?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Generally it is

         20  a 24- hour response time.

         21                 I think something that needed to be

         22  noted, we would like to capture 100 percent of this

         23  material, but what ends up happening, if you get a

         24  plastic bottle here, and you get a heavy rainstorm

         25  where water is pouring into here, that material
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          2  tends to bob up and down, some of it tends to get

          3  underneath it, and we need to pick it up at the boom

          4  out at the openings.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So do you have

          6  a way of getting this material from both the catch

          7  basin and from the boom itself?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:   Which is

         10  somewhere down the line?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Absolutely - -

         12  No, it's not somewhere down the line, we either get

         13  it at the outfall or we get in the catch basin

         14  itself.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I mean the

         16  outfall, I mean, that is what I mean by down the

         17  line.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, absolute.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We're joined by

         20  Council Member Leffler, by the way.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Pardon me?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Council Member

         23  Leffler from Queens has joined us.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Very good, how

         25  are you?
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          2                 A 1996 study by an environmental

          3  consulting firm under contract to us estimated that

          4  a hooded catch basin would retain about 75 percent

          5  of the floatables that entered it, that an unhooded

          6  catch basin would retain only about 10 percent of

          7  the debris entering, and obviously, none of the

          8  material that was floatable, but the solid materials

          9  that dropped to the bottom is what we're talking

         10  about here.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How long have

         12  we been doing this with the hooded catch basins?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The program has

         14  been going on for a number of years now.  We're just

         15  about finished with the program, and I will talk

         16  about that in a few minutes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Clearly the

         19  installation of hoods would make a major difference

         20  in the amount of debris entering the waterways

         21  around the City.

         22                 To make that happen, DEP's staff

         23  developed a Hood and Hanger Program with three

         24  functions, each of which became a separate contract.

         25
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          2                 The first contract was to identify

          3  and log the exact location, size, constructioning

          4  condition of every single catch basin in the City.

          5  It may sound remarkable, but the City did not have

          6  until now, this kind of comprehensive catch basin

          7  inventory. After being surveyed, each catch basin,

          8  now, is an identifying number stamped on its grate.

          9  All the data collected on the basin is entered into

         10  a mapping format compatible to DEP's existing

         11  computer mapping system.  The catch basin data files

         12  then become an ongoing management information system

         13  that aides us in tracking catch basin repair and

         14  maintenance needs, because as we develop a database,

         15    we will be able to predict when a catch basin

         16  needs cleaning and go out before there is a call

         17  from someone in the local neighborhood.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:   Is there

         19  anything that you could install by way of computer

         20  chip or something like that?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  There really is

         22  no need for it, there is no point wasting high tech

         23  technology on something that is fundamentally just a

         24  matter of time and understanding what the ratios

         25  are.  You could have five catch basins on two
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          2  different blocks and they will have completely

          3  different schedules for maintenance based upon

          4  usage, whether it's commercial or residential,

          5  whether the community is a tidy community or not a

          6  tidy community, and the data that we get from the

          7  management information system is much more

          8  predictable than anything else we would get and a

          9  hell of a lot cheaper.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  All right.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The next

         12  contract in the project was to clean basins and

         13  install hoods in all of the basins that needed them.

         14    Obviously the single, most important goal of the

         15  whole project was to get hoods in all the basins

         16  that needed them so the installation work was a key

         17  part of the contract.  However, unless we had an

         18  accurate list of the basins and their condition,

         19  which was what we were getting under the inventory

         20  contract, we couldn't accurately say how many basins

         21  needed hoods or even where they were located.

         22  Furthermore, because we can't hang a hood in a catch

         23  basin that is filled with debris, cleaning a catch

         24  basin, also, became part of the installation

         25  contract.  Creation of a computerized catch basin
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          2  inventory and the systematic cleaning of dirty

          3  basins are two very desirable side effects of a

          4  program that was primarily targeted at floatables

          5  control.

          6                 The third contract was devised to

          7  provide day- to- day coordination and management of

          8  the project.  The contractor's job was to get the

          9  data from the surveying contractor on catch basins

         10  in a given district, figure out how to schedule hood

         11  installation crews, monitor and supervise them,

         12  review requests for payments and then prepare status

         13  reports to DEP.

         14                 To sequence the work throughout the

         15  City, DEP staff used two criteria.  They looked at

         16  the cleanliness rating provided in the MMR for each

         17  of the City's fifty- nine community districts. Phase

         18  I of the project became those districts or parts

         19  thereof that met two criterion.  First, they had to

         20  have a street litter rating of 1.4 or more based on

         21  a seven point scale of cleanliness which defines

         22  ratings below 1.5 as acceptably clean and 3.0 as the

         23  dirtiest rating.  And the districts had to be in

         24  areas where the booming and skimming program

         25  captured less than 50 percent of the drainage area
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          2  in the district.  In Phase I there were 43,441 catch

          3  basins spread out over 25 community districts.

          4                 Phase II included those areas which

          5  rated 1.4 or less, and where the booming and

          6  skimming program captured more than 50 percent but

          7  less than 75 percent of the drainage area.  There

          8  are 51,000 catch basins in 26 districts meeting

          9  these criterion. Any basin not captured in Phases I

         10  and II, which are both fully completed, that is the

         11  projects are, was captured in Phase III, which is,

         12  as we speak, 99 percent completed, so we're

         13  essentially finished with the original setting up of

         14  the program and getting the catch basins into the

         15  condition we want them to be in.

         16                 The overall project is obviously a

         17  huge success.  In fact word of our program spread to

         18  our colleagues in Boston, who asked DEP Engineering

         19  staff to visit Boston and make an extended

         20  presentation on the program because they're thinking

         21  of replicating it there.  Of course, because this is

         22  New York, there were naturally some challenges along

         23  the way.  For example, the installation contract

         24  they had to design a special cleaning truck because

         25  the catch basin debris, including large objects,
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          2  couldn't be officially removed using conventional

          3  equipment.  Also, the total inventory of basins

          4  turned out to be 130,000, somewhat greater than

          5  estimated, so there were a lot more basins that

          6  required cleaning and a lot more debris than

          7  anticipated.  The problem of the additional bulk was

          8  resolved by using covered dumpsters to serve as

          9  interim storage points, allowing the cleaning trucks

         10  to turn around quicker and clean more basins, rather

         11  than having to drive off to the landfill frequently.

         12                 When the hooding project is

         13  completed, every basin in the City will have been

         14  coded into a computer, cleaned and hooded.  The

         15  final project cost is now about $33,872 million,

         16  that works out to about $95 per acre or $344 per

         17  basin.  Prior to the project being funded, we

         18  reviewed the costs for five other floatable control

         19  technologies with the use of hoods, that chart

         20  showing the cost of alternatives for floatable

         21  control is now up for you, and the Hood and Hanger

         22  Program was, obviously, to be determined the most

         23  cost- effective.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Let me just

         25  stop you there for a second, because I'm very
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          2  enthused about the program, I think it is a

          3  wonderful idea and what you're doing is magnificent.

          4    But I think for the purposes for the people who

          5  are observing this testimony, you ought to tell them

          6  how they're going to benefit from it.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well the

          8  benefits from it, quite frankly, are cleaner

          9  harvest, cleaner streets, less odors, no flooding at

         10  the intersections where catch basins are now jammed,

         11  and therefore, backed up.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Backed up into

         13  the basements of people's houses.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, they don't

         15  necessarily back up into the basements of people's

         16  houses, but they will back up onto the street, which

         17  means you have got flooded streets, and if they're

         18  flooded streets with floatables in them, then you

         19  have a concomitant mess, obviously, on the streets

         20  themselves.  So that is one of the reasons why we

         21  know that we don't get a jammed catch basin that

         22  lasts very long, because the first rainfall causes

         23  to flood out the street, we immediately get a phone

         24  call from someone that says, please, come down and

         25  take care of it, and again, the turn around time is
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          2  within 24 hours.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, thank

          4  you.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  On pages 90 and

          6  91 of the MMR, our environmental review performance

          7  is noted in three paragraphs of bulleted text.  The

          8  third bullet refers to the completion of

          9  Environmental Impact Statements for the Wolfe's Pond

         10  and Sweet Brook drainage basins.

         11                 Wolfe's Pond and Sweet Brook are two

         12  of 10 adjacent drainage basins in Staten Island that

         13  are known collectively by us as the Bluebelt.  In

         14  the Bluebelt, DEP is putting into place non

         15  structural storm water management plans whose

         16  primary goal is flow management and water quality

         17  improvement.  The side effects of the program are

         18  the preservation of wetlands and natural habitat in

         19  one of the City's more scenic areas.

         20                 The essence of the Bluebelt program

         21  is preserving and restoring the natural capacity of

         22  a drainage basin to conveyed, contain and filter

         23  storm water.  The Bluebelt has resulted in over $60

         24  million dollars of projects that improve water

         25  quality problems caused by failed septic systems and
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          2  flooding.  We call it non structural storm water

          3  management because to the extent you are funneling

          4  storm water through stream corridors into marshes

          5  and wetlands or detention ponds, you don't need pipe

          6  to carry that water to other, larger pipe and,

          7  eventually, to the open harbor. If you diminish the

          8  amount of storm water your system has to carry, you

          9  diminish the cost of building and maintaining that

         10  system. Some of the boards up here will show you the

         11  attractiveness of some of these solutions, and

         12  obviously, these are much, much more pleasing

         13  solutions than concrete or asphalt and manhole

         14  covers.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Does Staten

         16  Island have more septic tanks than any other

         17  borough?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, absolutely,

         19  and as a consequent we're putting in an enormous

         20  amount, a very high percentage of our sanitary

         21  sewers into that area as we can determine and make

         22  the outlets and the connections for them.

         23                 The storm water that trickles out of

         24  restored marshes and wetlands is purer than when it

         25  washed into those marshes and wetlands.  The

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  environmental management techniques utilized in the

          3  Bluebelt Program were only made possible because

          4  when we did the math, it showed that you could

          5  preserve and restore wetlands and open spaces and

          6  save capital dollars.  At this point in time, with

          7  the material that we put in place here, we have

          8  saved $100 million that is now available for

          9  sanitary sewers in Staten Island.

         10                 The need for the Bluebelt is one of

         11  the consequences of rapid development in Staten

         12  Island, which impacted wetland and caused chronic

         13  flooding.  In 1975, the City Planning Commission

         14  created the Special South Richmond Development

         15  District, which was an early step towards preserving

         16  undeveloped, urban wetlands parcels that are the

         17  backbone of the Bluebelt.

         18                 The completion of a large interceptor

         19  sanitary sewer along Hylan Boulevard, one of the

         20  Island's central arteries, allowed us to start

         21  extending out the smaller lateral sewer lines that

         22  would pick up sanitary drainage on either side of

         23  Hylan Boulevard.  To limit the need for storm

         24  sewers, which is some cases would have been built

         25  through wetlands, DEP began creating drainage plans
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          2  for the 10 basins that make up the Bluebelt.

          3                 The Drainage plan is the blueprint

          4  for how to preserve the basin's stream corridors and

          5  wetlands so that they can absorb the peak flows

          6  generated during rainstorms, thereby reducing

          7  flooding and erosion, and these two boards will show

          8  erosion control techniques and stream bank

          9  restoration, the next two charts, Joe.  Yes, well,

         10  you can see the stream bank, by monitoring the

         11  stream bank what we can do is eliminate the erosion

         12  on the side of - -  what ends up happening is you

         13  have got a curve in the waterway, there is enormous

         14  hydraulic pressure on the outboard side.  By

         15  armoring this end of it, so that we don't get a

         16  flooding or an erosion along this side of the

         17  stream, we're able to maintain the water in those

         18  channels.  And you notice this kind of a shallow

         19  area that runs right along both sides of this thing,

         20  it is basically the flood plain for artery itself,

         21  we can retain the water in that flood plain which is

         22  helpful for the flood plain, and then as the storm

         23  is ended, the water re- enters the channel again and

         24  goes back out the way it would normally go.  But you

         25  can see some of the before and after's that have
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          2  occurred around here, and this, obviously, is much

          3  more highly attractive than anything else we would

          4  put up.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It is good

          6  looking, did they also use, is there fish in those

          7  streams?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  They are not

          9  only more efficient, but you get a better water

         10  quality out of them.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:   Is there fish,

         12  do they fish in them?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  There are either

         14  fish in them, and we have seen fish in them when we

         15  were out there only a couple of months ago, there

         16  are fish in them.  We don't stock them, but I will

         17  leave that up to Henry.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It could become

         19  a trout stream.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well actually

         21  part of them, they really don't run enough water on

         22  a regular basis to become trout streams.  But I mean

         23  they certainly could be, you know, capable of being

         24  used by children and kids for fishing.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You should know
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          2  that recently I have been approached by a group of

          3  people who are involved in fly- fishing as to what

          4  we're doing upstate as well as down here.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well the fly-

          6  fishing industry in the Catskill/Delaware Watershed

          7  areas is the biggest economic engine in the

          8  watershed area itself, by far.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That whole area

         10  around - -

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We have world -

         12   -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  the Eddies,

         14  the short Eddies, small Eddies, fast Eddies - -

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We have world

         16  class trout fishing up there and people come from

         17  all over the world to fish that area.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Something that

         19  not too many people understand and know about it.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:   Well, again,

         21  when you look at the housing, the feeding, the

         22  transportation, the guiding and the equipment that

         23  they buy for the fishing, it's the largest segment

         24  of - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's around
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          2  Hancock, New York.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, well it's

          4  all through the watershed.

          5                 The Convent area, the Convent Avenue

          6  system here, again, this is a photograph of it, this

          7  is Anthony Street on the right, but you can see the

          8  way that it is developed, we have a piping system

          9  that brings the water in here, it goes into a fall

         10  bay where it settles, there is a high marsh, as you

         11  can see, around it, when a storm occurs the water

         12  then occupies this whole high marsh, when there is a

         13  low- flow it stays in the low marsh area, the curves

         14  tend to slow the water down, that means that the

         15  material that is encaptured with the water, that is

         16  entrained with it, tends to filter out, again, it

         17  gets filtered, goes into a micro- pool here, and

         18  then goes through a stabilized outlet and into here.The

         19  stream, itself, takes this, and then by taking the

         20  storm drainage into here, we're able to insert it

         21  and at the same time purify it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is this project

         23  finished?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  This is

         25  finished.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is there more

          3  to do on it?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, if anybody

          5  in the Council would like to take a trip out there,

          6  we're very pleased to provide transportation, get

          7  you out there and show you.  It is remarkable, it is

          8  not something that you would expect to find in an

          9  urban environment, we're very proud of it.

         10                 Part of the drainage plan preparation

         11  involves recommendations on the acquisition of

         12  parcels of land considered critical.  To date, the

         13  Bluebelt inventory includes 265.5 acres, which,

         14  obviously, will never be developed.  As the drainage

         15  plan develops and acquisitions are contemplated, DEP

         16  Bluebelt staff work with the Department of Design

         17  and Construction to develop the capital projects

         18  that are necessary to restore and/or enhance the

         19  natural drainage system.  In practice what this may

         20  mean is clearing a debris- strewn wasteland;

         21  excavating and molding it to form a specific terrain

         22  which is designed to slow and contain storm water;

         23  and then landscaping it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You said that

         25  this is not going to be developed, in other words,
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          2  you have done something to protect anybody from

          3  developing and buying this property?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, once we

          5  take the land and we use it for the Bluebelt, it

          6  will never be built upon for housing or anything

          7  else, so it will remain undeveloped.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And how do you

          9  make sure that that is the case?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We have title to

         11  it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But if the City

         13  decides to sell it, they can sell it, but there will

         14  be people who say don't sell it.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well let me put

         16  it to this way, I can't conceive of the City selling

         17  any more than they would sell a street that is in

         18  use.  The City obviously sells streets that are not

         19  in use when they no longer have a purpose for it.

         20  These are something that we expect to be a part of a

         21  larger system, I don't see that that would ever

         22  occur with these.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's been

         24  highlighted so that everybody knows exactly - -

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well they're

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            41

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  under DEP's control, they're not under DCAS's

          3  control or other agencies, so we would have to give

          4  them up first.  We would only give them up,

          5  obviously, under those circumstances where there was

          6  something that came up that said this was no longer

          7   - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You know it,

          9  does DCAS know it?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It doesn't

         11  matter because we control the land at this point in

         12  time, not DCAS.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We have not

         15  surrendered and will not surrender this land.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Good, and I

         17  hope subsequent Commissioners will not do it either.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, again, the

         19  answer is the agency has a need for it, and the same

         20  way we wouldn't give up any land that has our waste

         21  water facilities on it, this is part of the system,

         22  we're not about to give it up.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Very good.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Once finished,

         25  this originally debris- strewn wasteland has become
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          2  a natural storage tank and filter for storm water

          3  that funnels into it.  Otherwise, without the

          4  Bluebelt technology, all that storm water would have

          5  to be carried in pipes to either an outfall or a

          6  treatment plant.  And you can see, you know, the

          7  chart that shows it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you have

          9  personnel out here, policing this to make sure that

         10  it is --

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, we have a

         12  unit that is actually out, that is the Bluebelt

         13  Unit, essentially, they're headquartered out in

         14  Staten Island, their function is to, you know, build

         15  and maintain this.  We, obviously, have very, very

         16  close relationships with the surrounding communities

         17  who tend to be very supportive of what is going on.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I hope people

         19  of Staten Island appreciate what has been done here.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I'm advised that

         21  most of the property as we have taken it, has been

         22  mapped as titled wetlands, which is not permitted to

         23  be developed in the normal course of business

         24  anyhow.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Would this
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          2  still be under the jurisdiction of the Army Corps of

          3  Engineers?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  If it is

          5  wetland, it is under DEC, and yes, the Corpse of

          6  Engineers.

          7                 Yes, what Charlie is saying is that

          8  the boundary for the DE wetland was here, and now as

          9  a direct result of our inclusion of this project, we

         10  expect DEC to incorporate this into its wetlands.

         11  So we don't even have to take any action as long as

         12  they, you know, incorporate it into the wetland, it

         13  automatically becomes protected at the State level.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But is there

         15  some check to make sure that they do that?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, even if

         17  they don't do it, we still control the land.  But if

         18  they do, do it, there is a double protection for it.

         19    We keep in touch with them on a regular basis.

         20  Each one of these projects has been approved by

         21  them, so they are very much aware of the projects,

         22  we need their permission to do this because we're

         23  going in altering wetlands, so it is not a

         24  misreading.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So we don't
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          2  have to enter into any type of agreement with them?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, the permits,

          4  themselves, are basically an agreement.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So all of this

          6  has been documented or memorialized and properly in

          7  order to be protected in the future.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Absolutely.

          9                 In August of 1998, the Mayor led the

         10  City in celebrating the activation of Stage I of

         11  City Water Tunnel No. 3. Stage I begins at the

         12  Hillview Reservoir in Yonkers and extends south

         13  through the Bronx into Manhattan and then turns east

         14  in the vicinity of 79th Street to cross under the

         15  East River and Roosevelt Island into Astoria.  It is

         16  constructed in bedrock 300 to 800 feet below the

         17  surface.  By the year 2020, when the project is

         18  completed, City Tunnel No. 3 will provide the City

         19  with an alternative source of water delivery in case

         20  of disruption of service in either of the other two

         21  City tunnels; allow DEP to be able to reduce peak

         22  water flows, which periodically overload City

         23  Tunnels No. 1 and No. 2 resulting in low pressure

         24  conditions imparts of the city; will allow engineers

         25  to shut down either one of our two older tunnels for
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          2  inspection and repair, which is not possible today

          3  as both tunnels are needed for distribution; and

          4  finally to increase the system's capacity to deliver

          5  water to consumers.

          6                 Mayor Giuliani's decisive support for

          7  this project has been crucial in giving vital

          8  momentum to its construction.  The accelerated

          9  construction of the Tunnel, which allowed us to put

         10  Stage I in service last year, was the direct result

         11  of a Mayoral initiative to have major, multi- year

         12  capital projects reviewed and prioritized.  The

         13  purpose of the review is to ensure the advancement

         14  of timely, necessary projects and the re- thinking

         15  of ones based on obsolete technology or conditions

         16  that have changed.

         17                 The Administration's review of City

         18  Water Tunnel No. 3 concluded that in the best

         19  interest of the safety and reliability of the City's

         20  potable water supply, the project should be

         21  accelerated.  Accordingly, the following Tunnel No.

         22  3 segments will be put in service three years ahead

         23  of original schedule.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Wow.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  By December 2002
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          2  we will achieve the following Stage II milestones:

          3                 The Brooklyn- Queens leg of the

          4  tunnel, conveying water from activated Stage I

          5  through Queens to Red Hook in Brooklyn, will be

          6  completed.

          7                 Queens Shaft 16b, in Astoria, which

          8  will start supplying northwestern Queens, and

          9  Brooklyn shafts 20b through 23b, which will start

         10  supplying parts of Brooklyn, will be placed in

         11  service.

         12                 And finally, Brooklyn shaft 23b will

         13  be connected to the Richmond Tunnel, providing

         14  Staten Island with an alternative source of water

         15  from City Tunnel No. 2.

         16                 Stage II also has a lower Manhattan

         17  leg which will start in Central Park and run south

         18  along the west side of New York down to the Brooklyn

         19  Bridge area.  The Tunnel will then turn east and run

         20  north along the east side of Manhattan terminating

         21  in the vicinity of Third Avenue and 34th Street.  At

         22  the direction of the Mayor, we are looking to

         23  commence this section by awarding a contract in

         24  2001.

         25                 Three of the four necessary unique
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          2  subsurface valve chambers have already been

          3  constructed to allow the connection of future stages

          4  of the tunnel without removing the water or taking

          5  any other stage of the tunnel out of service.  These

          6  three valve chambers are located at Van Cortlandt

          7  Park in the Bronx, at Central Park in Manhattan, and

          8  at Roosevelt Island.  The fourth valve chamber will

          9  be in Sunnyside, Queens.  Currently, we're

         10  conducting a feasibility study to accelerate

         11  construction of this last chamber.  Construction of

         12  the Manhattan leg will benefit from use of a tunnel

         13  boring machine, a methodology which was successfully

         14  used in the Brooklyn Queens portion of Stage II.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The valve

         16  chambers, we, of course, visited them a number of

         17  times the one in the Bronx.  Are the one in

         18  Manhattan and the one in Queens going to be similar

         19  to that?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The one in

         21  Manhattan is completed and the one at Roosevelt

         22  Island is completed, they will be smaller and the

         23  reason for it is, if you take a look behind me at

         24  the map, most of our water comes in through here so

         25  there is a larger need for a more involved system up
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          2  here, and then as we get further down it becomes

          3  smaller, as we get into Queens it becomes smaller,

          4  so the valve chambers as you get further and further

          5  away from the supply becomes smaller because the

          6  pipes that they service become smaller.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Where in

          8  Central Park are the valves?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's 79th

         10  Street.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's under the

         12  surface?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Underneath the

         14  park.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And it is

         16  finished?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's finished.

         18  If you would like to visit, let us know.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, I think I

         20  would like to. Let me ask, do these, they can act

         21  independently, the valve chambers?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, they, no,

         23  they act independently only in the sense that they

         24  are individual valves that can be opened and closed

         25  at the different valve chambers, but they are very,
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          2  very much operated in concert with each other

          3  because what happens up at the valve chamber of Van

          4  Cortlandt Park impacts upon, you know, what you have

          5  at Manhattan and what you have at Roosevelt Island

          6  and what you will ultimately have at Sunnyside, and

          7  the bottom line is that some of the ones sustains

          8  the system will be operate the valves at all of the

          9  locations in concert to get an expected result at

         10  any point in the system.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And as I

         12  remember in Van Cortlandt Park, you really had no

         13  personnel up there and it is all operated out of - -

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  There is no

         15  necessity of any personnel to operate any of these

         16  things, they can all be operated ultimately from our

         17  Command Center at Leffrak, or if we needed to, we

         18  could send people down to operate the valves

         19  manually.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And as far a

         21  security arrangements, making sure that they are all

         22  secure?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Security

         24  arrangements are obviously something that is very,

         25  very important to us, particularly in the times that
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          2  we're dealing with and the environment we're dealing

          3  with, and we are working on those in concert with

          4  the NYPD, our own PD, and the Office of Emergency

          5  Management, and the Federal Government.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How far below

          7  the surface are the ones other than the - -

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The one under

          9  Van Cortlandt Park - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Van Cortlandt,

         11  I know.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: - -  is 25

         13  stories below the ground.  Central Park is 560 feet

         14  below the ground, Roosevelt Island is 700 feet below

         15  it.  So as you get further away from the supply

         16  system, you get deeper and deeper.  Okay?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Oh, I see.

         18  Yes.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  A tunnel boring

         20  machine is a rock excavation machine which is

         21  brought to a shaft site in pieces, lowered into a

         22  shaft and then re- assembled for operation at the

         23  bottom.  The TBM chips off sections of bedrock

         24  through the continuous rotation of a series of steel

         25  cutting tools mounted on a large- diameter, full-
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          2  circle, welded steel cutter head.  It has largely

          3  replaced the prior method of excavating through

          4  blasting.           The unit we have over here, the

          5  model is basically a model of the tunnel boring

          6  machine that has been working in the Brooklyn-

          7  Queens section working from Maspeth into Sunnyside.

          8  The diameter of that machine in scale is 24 feet,

          9  the cutter head, Charlie, rotate that cutter head?

         10  The cutter head rotates, they're cutting, each of

         11  those black units on it is a cutter head that chops

         12  into the rock, basically, causes pieces of the rock

         13  to fall down, as the rock falls down, the rock

         14  eventually gets picked up by these little webs that

         15  you see here that are around the perimeter of it,

         16  they take it up to the top in the spin, and then the

         17  material is deposited behind the cutter head wheel,

         18  and it ends up on a conveyor behind it, that

         19  conveyor at the last stretched five miles

         20  horizontally back to Maspeth, where the material is

         21  transferred again by machine to a vertical conveyor

         22  that took it 650 feet up above the ground.

         23                 It was deposited on the ground by a

         24  tipple, a front end loader picked it up, loaded it

         25  onto rail cars, and rail cars took it out to Long
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          2  Island where it was made into rock, trap rock to be

          3  used for roads.  Minimal amount of hand work on

          4  these, the machine was able to do the entire job.

          5                 That machine, by the way, had to make

          6  the 110 degree left turn you see here, and to think

          7  of a machine that size, that far below the ground,

          8  and that enormous in size, make a 110 degree left

          9  turn on an automatic basis, and frankly, when it

         10  finally holed through some weeks ago out in Astoria,

         11  it was four inches off from dead center of the hole

         12  that it was cutting into in a five- mile length from

         13  Maspeth, which is fairly remarkable.

         14                 In conclusion, these four projects

         15  highlight this Department's success in improving

         16  source water quality, minimizing the amount of

         17  floatables in receiving waters; improving the

         18  environment in Staten Island while saving capital

         19  money; and providing redundancy and greater

         20  assurance in distributing the City's drinking water.

         21    These successes, as well as the myriad of other

         22  tasks covered in the MMR, reinforce my faith in the

         23  quality of the Department's service to the residents

         24  of the City.

         25                 I thank you for the opportunity to
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          2  deliver testimony this morning.  I wish all present

          3  and all of yours a happy holiday, and we will be

          4  happy to answer any questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very

          6  much, Commissioner, very interesting testimony, and

          7  I would like to acknowledge the fact that we have

          8  with us, Council Member Tracey Boyland from

          9  Brooklyn, Council Member Carrion of the Bronx, and

         10  Council Member Fiala of Staten Island, who I'm sure

         11  would have been very interested in your Bluebelt

         12  testimony, I'm sure he will get that testimony from

         13  us on this.  As I said, there are other commitments

         14  of Council members that they come in time to time,

         15  but it was extremely interesting.

         16                 What is the weight of this TBM?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We will get you

         18  an answer.  I think something that is interesting,

         19  anecdotally, but - -  the capability, obviously, I

         20  mean, it's 24 feet in diameter, it is pretty much

         21  the size of this room in size, so you can get some

         22  scope of what we're dealing with there.  One of the

         23  things that is interesting is that now that we're

         24  finished using this machine and we're waiting to bid

         25  the next contract that will require it, obviously,
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          2  there is no use for this machine and the contractor

          3  is very interested in getting it off of his hands

          4  and into somebody else's hands.  There was some

          5  question as to whether they were able to find

          6  somebody who could use it, take it off of their

          7  hands or not, and there was a contemplation that one

          8  point that since they didn't have any use for it and

          9  since it was going to be extremely expensive to take

         10  it apart and take it to the surface again, there was

         11  talk about, essentially, just boring a hole into the

         12  side of the tunnel - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Leaving it

         14  there.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: - -  encasing the

         16  machine in it and leaving it there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You get some

         18  idea of that.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  And other - -

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:   Perhaps they

         21  could use the two tunnels under the - -

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well they can,

         23  but it needs to be completely rebuilt.  It is,

         24  obviously, only good for 23- foot in diameter,

         25  because that is the diameter of it, it would have to
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          2  be rebuilt for anything else.  The tunnel that we're

          3  going to do in Manhattan is 16 feet, I mean, so

          4  obviously it would have to be rebuilt for us,

          5  because a 23- foot machine is not going to fit in a

          6  16- foot hole, so they're highly, highly specialized

          7  for the work that is being done, and you have to

          8  find another job.

          9                 Also, incidentally, I understand

         10  there is a project in Canada, they're going to be

         11  using a 50- foot diameter tunnel boring machine,

         12  which is twice the size of that plus, and the length

         13  of the tunnel they're boring is only one mile.  The

         14  problem is they have a time frame that is extremely

         15  rigid if they are going to be able to use the

         16  project when they get it finished, and they,

         17  therefore, have to guarantee that it gets completed

         18  as rapidly as possible.  So they're actually

         19  spending $33 million to build a tunnel boring

         20  machine that is going to bore rock one mile.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Who

         22  manufactures that?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is done by,

         24  I think, the company is Robins.  There are a couple

         25  of companies in the world that handle it, obviously,
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          2  it is very specialized.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How responsible

          4  is this machine for your ability to cut three years

          5  off of your time table?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Very

          7  responsible.  It was able to, basically, double what

          8  we estimated could be done by blasting with

          9  individual sand hocks.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  In September of

         11  1998, your agency began allowing developments around

         12  the City, those upstate reservoirs to install septic

         13  systems on steeply, sloping hills, drawing the

         14  concern of environmentalists who feared the practice

         15  would pollute the City's water supply.  Your policy

         16  says that the septic fields can be built around

         17  upstate reservoirs on slopes that go up to 20

         18  percent.  The new policy reverses a March 1998

         19  decision by the City to forbid any septic fields or

         20  structures on slopes more than 15 percent.  Could

         21  you give us the reason why the Department allowed

         22  the increase to slope to 20 percent?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, I think,

         24  first of all, we have to understand there is a

         25  vested interest on the part of certain individuals
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          2  to make a major furor out of this, and I guess it

          3  only becomes of importance to the media and to the

          4  environmental community, if you can make a case.  I

          5  guess the best thing I can describe this is the case

          6  of much to do about nothing.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well the facts

          8  here speak for themselves.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The facts do

         10  speak for themselves, and I'm going to ask, you

         11  know, my deputies to speak about it, but let me,

         12  first of all say, there is no and never has been any

         13  right to build on a 20 percent slope, and I'm going

         14  to make this as plain as I can.

         15                 State law permits you to build on a

         16  15 degree slope. The question that has been raised

         17  here and it was raised to the State, and the State

         18  concurred with this policy was that if you had a 20

         19  degree slope and you deliberately raised it so it

         20  did not exceed 15 degrees, which met the standard,

         21  was that of the equivalent of a 15 degree slope,

         22  and, of course, the answer that the State gave is

         23  yes, it is.  So the question was, are you stuck with

         24  only using natural 15 degree slopes or could you

         25  artificially take a slope that was as much as 20

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  degree slope, artificially change to the maximum of

          3  15 degree slope and put a sanitary system in it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  From

          5  engineering it was a question of whether it provides

          6  the protection that we required?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Again, the

          8  answer is if you can build a system on a natural 15

          9  degree slope, what is the technical difference in

         10  building it on an artificially created 15 degree

         11  slope, and the engineers and scientists have

         12  effectively said, none.  Okay?

         13                 The bottom line is you are not

         14  permitted, never have been permitted, and never will

         15  be permitted to build on a 20 degree slope.  The

         16  question is, could you alter a 20 degree slope to 15

         17  degrees and consider that an acceptable angle?

         18                 Now I will ask Dr. Stasiuk to expand

         19  on that.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Yes,

         21  I'm Bill Stasiuk. I'm the Deputy for the Water

         22  Supply, Quality and Protection.  The Commissioner is

         23  right that the State has always interpreted

         24  Statewide that slopes can be modified as long as

         25  they're modified down to 15 percent, and the
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          2  original slope was not more than 20 percent.  So the

          3  Department did not increase the allowable slope. The

          4  State had granted waivers some time ago to Putnam

          5  and Westchester Counties that allowed for the

          6  construction on slopes between 15 and 20 that were

          7  not modified, by a demonstration by the counties

          8  that they were equivalent.  The State agreed to

          9  that, that was challenged by the environmentalist

         10  who said that that waiver was not issued following

         11  SEQR, so those waivers were withdrawn.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Excuse me, let

         13  me just point out the State did not withdraw that

         14  approval based upon engineering or science, but

         15  solely on the base of the fact they agreed that they

         16  had failed to meet the standard criteria for making

         17  such a determination.  It was procedural - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Procedural.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: - -  not

         20  engineering or scientific.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Understood?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is clear.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  So once

         25  those waivers were withdrawn, everybody reverted
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          2  back to the general State process which allows for

          3  the modification of slopes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well how do

          5  they modify the slopes?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Well

          7  you could do it either by cutting, or you could

          8  modify it by filling at the toe. You can cut it at

          9  the head end of the slope, or you can fill at the

         10  toe.  If you cut, in general, you have to put in

         11  some sort of drainage above the system so that any

         12  ground water that may be nearby gets diverted from

         13  the system.  So there is a whole set of criterion.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But the end

         15  result is that you have a 15 degree slope.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  That is

         17  correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Not a 20 degree

         19  slope.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Now in allowing

         22  them to do that, does this increase the amount of

         23  acreage which is available for development?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Do you

         25  mean that wouldn't have been available, - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right, right,

          3  yes.

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: - -  if

          5  the State system was only 15 percent?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well the

          7  argument has been made that they're doing this in

          8  order to allow for development where development

          9  wouldn't ordinarily be allowed.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  One of

         11  the problems with the, in general, is that you don't

         12  know when somebody may have modified the land.

         13  Somebody could get land, bring in a dozer, which

         14  doesn't require any permit, let it lie fallow for

         15  five years and then come back in and say, here it is

         16  15 percent, so it is very hard to determine, you

         17  know, if it ever really was 20 percent.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's hard to

         19  enforce.  But I think the answer to your question

         20  is, yes.  It's pretty obvious if we restricted the

         21  development and the State restricted the development

         22  to only natural 15 degree slopes, 15 percent slopes,

         23  and then change that to 20 percent slopes that were

         24  modified to 15 percent slopes there would be

         25  additional development in land.  The bottom line of
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          2  this is, would it meet our criteria for protecting

          3  the environment?  And the answer is, it would have

          4  to do that, otherwise we wouldn't permit it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Now are we

          6  talking about many people, many developers who are

          7  doing this, or just a few who are doing this?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  There

          9  are some 15 percent slopes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We understand

         11  that most of, we are being told that a lot of this

         12  is going on in Putnam County; is that right?  Mainly

         13  this is happening in Putnam County?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Yes,

         15  there are some in Westchester County, as well.  It's

         16  primarily in the Croton Watershed, and not to the

         17  same extent in Kensico - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I know the

         19  Commissioner has said that it is hard to tell who

         20  has done it and who has not.  Do we have any

         21  ballpark estimate as to how, to what degree this is

         22  going on?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  We

         24  could get you those figures, we have those figures

         25  somewhere.  Do you recall, it's like maybe 10
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          2  percent of the systems, I seem to recall around 10

          3  percent were slopes that were modified.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And in the

          5  areas which are sensitive areas we're talking about

          6  here.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well anything in

          8  our watershed, we consider a sensitive area any how.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Then, of

         10  course, in the wetlands, themselves, we're not

         11  permitting this to happen.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  This would not

         13  be in wetlands, you can't, obviously, put a sanitary

         14  system in a wetland.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And do we check

         16  to see whether or not it does meet the criteria when

         17  they put in these septic tanks?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, if it

         19  doesn't meet the criteria, it cannot be permitted,

         20  period.  It doesn't matter what other criteria it

         21  meets.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And this is not

         23  a self certified type thing, you actually go out

         24  there and do it?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Absolutely not.
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          2  It is filed with us.

          3                 Now, I think it is important to

          4  recognize this though, let me give you a little for

          5  instance, because I could picture this happening.

          6  The answer is yes, you no longer can build, you can

          7  only build on natural 15 degree slope, 15 percent

          8  slopes.  Now if someone came in, in 1910 and altered

          9  the terrain with a DA Catapiller from 20 to 15

         10  percent, should we consider that in the year 2000 a

         11  natural slope?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I think that is

         13  a grandfathered in situation.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The question is,

         15  how far back do you go?  I mean, you know, the

         16  enforcement on this.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But it's now a

         18  15 degree slope, is what you're saying.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, but, again,

         20  even if you use the criteria that Westchester and

         21  Putnam have now, where if you have got a 20 degree

         22  slope and you raise it up to 15 degrees, you can

         23  build on it.  The answer is whether you do it now or

         24  you did it 100 years ago, what is the actual

         25  difference, how do we justify, you know, determining
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          2  that you have grandfathered something that occurred

          3  in 1910, but you won't grandfather something that

          4  occurred in 1935?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I understand

          6  your point very well.  But the only question in my

          7  mind is whether or not this, in any way, is going to

          8  be a threat to the watershed?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, if it is a

         10  threat to the watershed, we will oppose it.  If we

         11  felt that it was a threat to the watershed, we would

         12  oppose it.

         13                 The other thing that needs to be said

         14  about it, clearly, it is State jurisdiction to make

         15  that determination.  We have made it very plain as

         16  long as there is an engineering and scientific basis

         17  for what they do, we would probably have no

         18  difficulty with it.  The problem is, the cart has

         19  been put before the horse.  The people who have been

         20  crying about this are protesting that we have made a

         21  change at the Municipal level that we're trying to

         22  force down to the State, when, in fact, it is the

         23  State that has made the determination and we're

         24  going along with the overriding authority is of the

         25  State Government against the Municipality.
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          2                 So, I mean, why they look at us and

          3  say you did this, is beyond me.  It is none of our

          4  doing, it is completely the State.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I didn't say

          6  that you did it or that you're tolerating it.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's not a

          8  question of tolerating, we're required to except

          9  State law.  It's nothing that happened just now.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But you don't

         11  believe that it is something that we should try to

         12  change State law?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, the issue is

         14  State law, it wasn't changed, there was no change in

         15  State law, the only thing that change was as Dr.

         16  Stasiuk said, was the proposal that Westchester and

         17  Putnam had by the waiver provision for building on

         18  greater than 15 percent slopes.  Now, both

         19  Westchester and Putnam have been told by the State

         20  if you apply for that waiver again, we will properly

         21  proceed with evaluating it, if we give it to again,

         22  you will end up with the waiver.  The question will

         23  come up for us, at this point, will we accept that

         24  or we will assist upon the fact that 15 percent is

         25  the maximum slope we will permit a sanitary system
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          2  on.

          3                 I suspect that what will end up

          4  happening is we will look at those on an individual

          5  basis and determine whether we believe there will be

          6  any negative impact on the environment, if there is,

          7  we will say, no.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well I think

          9  that is all we should asking.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well the problem

         11  is that is not the way it is being portrayed by

         12  certain interests in Westchester and Putnam County.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How are they

         14  portraying it?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  They're

         16  portraying it as we're the bad guy, we're doing the

         17  thing.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I understand,

         19  okay.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Mr.

         21  Chairman, are you aware that under the Watershed

         22  Partnership Protection Council that there is a

         23  technical advisory committee - -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I am.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: - -
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          2  whether or not permitting the construction between

          3  15 and 20 percent creates a risk of greater failure.

          4    And if it demonstrates that it would, we would

          5  then advocate for a change in the State regulation

          6  or a change in our own watershed rules and

          7  regulations.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well, I think,

          9  hopefully, we become extremely vigilant on this,

         10  because as you know nothing is a driving force as

         11  the desire for developers to develop and to make

         12  money, but that is what we require you and we ask

         13  you and we depend upon you to protect the interest,

         14  and I know that that is your thought also.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Our goal is to

         16  protect the environment, and in protecting the

         17  environment not to unduly restrict reasonable and

         18  environmentally sound development.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  As long as it

         20  is not a threat to the water supply.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I started out by

         22  saying that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Which is our

         24  mandate, which I know you feel strongly about as I

         25  do.
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          2                 Mr. Sabini.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Thank you,

          4  Mr. Chairman. Good morning, Commissioner and staff.

          5  We see in the MMR your resolution rates and I noted

          6  that this year there was a change in the resolution

          7  rate or an omission for air, noise, and hazardous

          8  materials, because of a shortage of data entry

          9  staff.  And I'm just wondering why is that, what is

         10  the headcount?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

         12  good afternoon, Bob Avaltroni, Deputy Commissioner

         13  of Air, Noise, and Hazardous Materials.

         14                 Actually, what you're reading,

         15  Councilman, could be a bit misleading.  What we did,

         16  is, we made a concentrated effort to look through

         17  our system and our records where, when we were going

         18  out for inspections we were finding businesses out,

         19  not available, not around, out of business, what

         20  have you.  So we went through our records and went

         21  through our database and diluted that population so

         22  we would work smarter, be more efficient and go out

         23  in a timely fashion.  So I think what you see is,

         24  and I think what you are referring to, is something

         25  that could be misleading.
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          2                 What we are doing, is many

          3  inspections as we have before, we are responding to

          4  complaints within the 24- hour period that we have

          5  come before you in the past, and we're maintaining

          6  that level.  And as far as data entry in terms of

          7  data entry is concerned, again, we have weeded our

          8  system out and we don't have a problem in that

          9  regard.

         10                 Our headcount will be going up to 197

         11  with the addition of 12 people to our Right To Know

         12  Program, so, in fact, we will not have a decline in

         13  personnel, as well.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Now, the

         15  number of catch basins cleaned is down, but in the

         16  notes you say it is because the number of complaints

         17  are down.  What do you think that is?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Because we told

         19  you about the Hood and Hanger Program that had as

         20  part of its element the cleaning and the

         21  reconstruction of any of the systems, any part of

         22  the element of the system were down, so basically,

         23  we got a shot in the arm by having it all done at

         24  one time, that obviously would bring them down

         25  because there were less dirty catch basins.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Okay, so then

          3  the projection would be for that to continue.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, we expect

          5  it will continue, and again, part of the Hood and

          6  Hanger Program and the idea that we have got the

          7  computerization of this thing now, will give us a

          8  much better handle on it.  There were, obviously, a

          9  significant number of catch basins, we didn't even

         10  have within the system itself, we now have them

         11  because we have gone, basically, block by block in

         12  the City of New York.

         13                 Now as we develop data on how long it

         14  takes for these catch basins to become dirty and

         15  need servicing, we will be able to go out,

         16  obviously, like at the 90 or 95 percent all of the

         17  time that that takes and anticipate them so that we

         18  will not get a complaint.  We hope to drive the

         19  complaints down to, essentially, zero.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  In watching

         21  you and your staff respond to a flood on Grand

         22  Street, the issue was raised that perhaps faulty or

         23  missing grease traps in restaurants may have caused

         24  that, and, in fact, when we asked your staff to

         25  check on grease traps in restaurants and certain
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          2  parts in Elmhurst and Jackson Heights, we found

          3  almost universal non- compliance.  I'm just

          4  wondering if you have any statistics that are not in

          5  the MMR that would show what the number of

          6  inspections conducted or violations issued, or

          7  anything that you could inadvertently measure to

          8  show us what, if this condition exists Citywide?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well let me

         10  start by saying this, when we were out to take a

         11  look at the situation that you outlined,

         12  interestingly enough, I signed off on a letter of

         13  response to you, yesterday, I don't know if you have

         14  received it or not, but the answer is, yes, there

         15  were problems.  There were three kinds of problems

         16  that we have.

         17                 The first problem is in facilities

         18  that basically have been built and altered since,

         19  and somehow are now occupied by a use that really

         20  needs a grease trap and there is no grease trap.

         21  That, obviously, creates a major problem, because

         22  the grease flows through directly into our sewers,

         23  clogs the branch sewers and then backs up into the

         24  rest of the homes and businesses on either side of

         25  this malfactor, if I can put it that way.
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          2                 The second one is where someone has

          3  gone down to the Building Department and has said

          4  that I going to be putting in a use that will

          5  require a grease trap, and then puts in a grease

          6  trap, which in the past has been determined by the

          7  engineer or the architect to be adequate for the

          8  load that it is going to be there, provided that it

          9  is cleaned out in a certain sequence of time.  And

         10  in many cases we have found out that because of lack

         11  of knowledge about the needs for grease traps,

         12  architects and engineers have undersized the grease

         13  traps.  Consequently, if they are called to be

         14  cleaned every two months and they're filling up

         15  every one month, 50 percent of the grease is ending

         16  up in our sewers.

         17                 The third case is where there is a

         18  competent evaluation of the size of a grease trap

         19  and the need for a grease trap, and then the grease

         20  trap is expected to be cleaned out every two months

         21  or every 90 days, whatever it might be based upon

         22  its loading, and the owner then fails to get a

         23  contractor to come in and do that, or fails to do it

         24  himself or herself.  In which case, what ends up

         25  happening is the grease trap fills up and the
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          2  balance of the material ends up in our street.

          3                 As a result of your complaint and the

          4  problem that you had and some others that we have

          5  had in other areas, including Rockaway and a couple

          6  of other, West Side, et cetera, we have realized

          7  that we have got a problem there.  And what we are

          8  evaluating now, within the agency, is whether we

          9  have in- house the staff to go out, essentially, and

         10  to do an evaluation of every single commercial area

         11  in the City of New York, and if we have that, to go

         12  out to evaluate these things where there is no

         13  grease trap, give the people 30 days to install a

         14  proper, adequate grease trap by filing with the

         15  Building Department, and we will be back in 30 days

         16  to take a look.  If it is a grease trap that is

         17  there now and it, obviously, evidences, because you

         18  can't get the cover off of it, that it has never

         19  been opened and never been cleaned, we give them 30

         20  days to get a contractor, we want to see evidence of

         21  a contract of regular cleaning.  And if we get to a

         22  fully sized one and it still obviously is not, we're

         23  looking for a contract, et cetera.

         24                 The process is not to be punitive

         25  because what we're looking to do is to get
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          2  compliance, not to collect money.  So we give them

          3  the 30 days, there is no penalty for it, but if we

          4  come back at the end of 30 days, there will either

          5  be a Commissioner's Order or Notice of Violation

          6  issued for egregious, you know, failures to comply.

          7                 The answer is, if we don't have the

          8  in- house staff to do it, would we consider using a

          9  contractor to do the first inspection to determine

         10  what the situation is and to issue a letter that

         11  says you got 30 days to do something.  I would be

         12  very pleased to get back to you as soon as we put

         13  together what we're doing with that.

         14                 But we agree with you, that that is

         15  creating a problem within our sewers system for

         16  maintenance, and it is creating a headache for

         17  people who live in the adjourning areas.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Well you're

         19  not really agreeing with me, I'm sort of agreeing

         20  with you because you sort of outlined the problem

         21  initially.  But I'm wondering what, and this is

         22  important for the members of the Committee that

         23  don't, haven't seen this problem, but is it fair to

         24  say that some of the street flooding we have is

         25  because of this?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, absolutely.

          3    Some of the street flooding that we have is caused

          4  by grease clogging the sewers, absolutely.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  So I'm

          6  delighted to hear that you're going to try to put

          7  together something.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We're not going

          9  to try, we're going to put something together, the

         10  only question is what it will look like when we get

         11  finished.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Like what,

         13  okay.  And if you do, and I hope you do soon.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We will.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Okay, then we

         16  should see it in the MMR next year.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, we will

         18  see what we put together, I will let you,

         19  personally, know what it is, because you obviously

         20  have a personal interest, and, you know, we will let

         21  the Chairman of the Committee know, because

         22  obviously the Committee has a personal interest.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Okay.  I

         24  guess, Commissioner Avaltroni should come back.  You

         25  had 100 percent - -
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  If you have the

          3  same list that you have, could you give us a clue by

          4  telling us what the number of the question is?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  No, these are

          6  my home brew questions.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Okay, it's hunt

          8  and peck for us, I have to tell you guys.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Because these

         10  are my own private stock.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Your own notes,

         12  I understand you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  My staff and

         14  I put these together.  We noted that there were only

         15  88 percent of the noise complaints responded to 100

         16  percent of your other complaints responded to, and

         17  I'm wondering why the noise, while 88 is a good

         18  number, why noise is not at 100?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, maybe

         20  before you ask Commissioner Avaltroni the question,

         21  maybe I will try a response. Noise is not just our

         22  responsibility alone, it's ours and PD's, and it is

         23  possible that the other 12 percent are answered by

         24  PD, it's that simple.  The answer is, I am not

         25  aware, and I think I will ask Commissioner Avaltroni
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          2  to make his own statement on it, I'm not aware of

          3  any unresponded to complaint, we may not be the one

          4  who is responding to all of them, though.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Yes,

          6  the Commissioner is very correct in that statement,

          7  and there is another addendum to that as well.  If

          8  we get a noise complaint, and I think we have

          9  discussed this in the past, for instance, from an

         10  evening spot on a Saturday night, obviously, it

         11  doesn't behoove us to go out on a Sunday to respond

         12  effectively within that 24- hour period, so we will,

         13  in effect, make an appointment for the following

         14  Saturday when they are having that problem, and so

         15  that reflects in that number.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Why wouldn't

         17  that be - -

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:

         19  Because the system carries out for seven days, and

         20  so it doesn't look like we're responding and then

         21  closing it out within the appropriate period of

         22  time.  And as the Commissioner suggested we have dog

         23  barking complaints and the like that are not under

         24  our purview.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  And maybe
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          2  this makes your numbers look better, but maybe you

          3  should try and find a way to better document them so

          4  that your numbers do more properly reflect to your

          5  credit?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I understand

          7  what you're saying, part of the problem is I'm not

          8  overly enamored of some of the ways that the MMR

          9  gives us to respond.  Because as you just pointed

         10  out here, you sometimes get, really an erroneous

         11  impression by the information that you get.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Let me just

         13  ask you, you mentioned that since you have dual

         14  jurisdiction with the Police Department, if you

         15  receive the complaint, I assume that there are some

         16  cases where the person, you know, Mrs. Smith calls

         17  you or DEP help and the local precinct and someone

         18  responds.  Are there cases where you call the

         19  Police?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, obviously,

         21  if it is the type of complaint that can best be

         22  handled by a local sector corridor of the New York

         23  City Police Department, we will refer it to police

         24  and Bob has got a liaison with the Department.

         25  There are some things where they want us to be with
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          2  them when they go out, we go out and we support

          3  them.  There are other things that they look at us,

          4  like Bob has indicated, the nightclub, these are not

          5  things that they want to bother with because it is

          6  easier for us to handle a fixed location sound

          7  problem then it is for them, and they have got other

          8  things to look at.  So we have worked out pretty

          9  well, but I think what Bob is saying to you is that

         10  if a nightclub is open on Saturday night, it is not

         11  opened on Sunday night, there is no way for us to

         12  respond within 24 hours, we may have responded, but

         13  the statistics show that we failed to meet the 24-

         14  hour criteria, which is, you know, really

         15  inappropriate in the case that we are dealing with.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  And I

         17  think just to, not belabor the point, but to take it

         18  a step further, our initiatives along with the other

         19  agencies on the marching issues, the multi- agency

         20  response to chronic problems.  This is an area that

         21  we work together with PD and the other areas, the

         22  State Labor Authority, Fire Department, et cetera,

         23  so that has been a very effective.  And as you know

         24  when you call with a problem in your community, we

         25  react properly.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Okay, thank

          3  you, Commissioner.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Mr. Leffler, do

          5  you have any questions?  Yes, Mr. Leffler has a

          6  question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  Good

          8  morning, good to see you all.  This is about

          9  hazardous materials, do you have an opinion as to

         10  the efficacy of the City's program with respect to

         11  disposal of hazardous waste that individuals in

         12  their own households have?

         13                 I know the Sanitation Department in

         14  the past, long ago, had a household hazardous waste

         15  pickup, and have said to us repeatedly that it would

         16  develop a household hazardous waste pickup.  The

         17  reason I asked the question is out of a sense to

         18  your opinion of the effectiveness of the program, do

         19  you get consulted from time to time, do you think

         20  State funds which exist in the area are being used

         21  adequately?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I don't think I

         23  can answer those question because I don't think we

         24  have enough information to give you.  I can say

         25  this, we are contacted from time to time by DOS when
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          2  they have a problem, it generally relates to a

          3  hazardous impact on their own operating personnel

          4  rather than, you know, in a private operation, that

          5  is, someone has thrown some garbage in the back of a

          6  dump truck, something is broken, they recognize it.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  There was a

          8  terrible incident like that - -

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER: - -  with

         11  sulfuric acid, about two years ago when somebody got

         12  killed, I think.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We are always

         14  called on those incidents, we have a good liaison

         15  and a good working relationship with them.

         16                 The other thing is, if there is

         17  hazardous material and an individual calls our help

         18  line, we will respond to that, even if we come out

         19  and pick up the material we will arrange to have

         20  disposed of ourselves, if it is not nuclear.  If it

         21  is nuclear, we will refer them to the Health

         22  Department who have the responsibility for nuclear

         23  material.

         24                 But the answer is, if you find

         25  mercury container or something in your garage that
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          2  has been laying around, the answer is, if you call

          3  us, we will come pick it up.  So we're very pleased

          4  to do that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  All right,

          6  the reason that I asked is that I have the

          7  impression that this is still a matter, you know,

          8  that needs to be better dealt with.  But you can

          9  only deal with it, if you are consulted, it's their

         10  prime responsibility, I recognize that.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, I'm not

         12  aware of them consulting with us, I guess they

         13  believe that is their own area, you know, of

         14  responsibility.  Where we're consulted by them, we

         15  have a good relationship and we're very comfortable

         16  how it works.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LEFFLER:  Okay, thank

         18  you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So I guess,

         20  what inspected hazardous, really hazardous waste is

         21  really they're not supposed to have it on their

         22  premises and their supposed to be able to dispose of

         23  it, it should be done privately.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is correct,

         25  and the answer is, if we get a call on it, we will
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          2  come down and we will arrange, we have a contractor

          3  that we can call out on a 24- hour day, 7- day a

          4  week basis to pick up material and to properly

          5  handle it and dispose of it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Mr. Fiala.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman. Welcome, Commissioner, Commissioners, I'm

          9  sorry we have two hearings going on at the same

         10  time, and this one is less controversial than the

         11  other one.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Thank God.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  Thank God.  I

         14  want to commend you for incorporating into the MMR

         15  comments on the Bluebelt.  I think this is a very

         16  important component of what DEP will do in the 21st

         17  Century, I want to thank you for your leadership.

         18  And before I ask a question, I want to also thank a

         19  few individuals, I want to thank Deputy Commissioner

         20  Greeley, who is wonderful and responsive and very

         21  supportive of what we're trying to do.  I want to

         22  thank Dina Gumm (phonetic) and Jack Forcrell

         23  (phonetic) and our field supervisors, like Jim

         24  Rossey and Jack Crawford on Staten Island.

         25                 Last year I asked the question, let
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          2  me ask it again this year, I think we have made some

          3  significant progress over the last 12 months, what

          4  is the budget for the Bluebelt, both in terms of

          5  construction and maintenance, and is it or will it

          6  be a separate line item in FY 2000 and 2001?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I can answer

          8  your last question, the answer is, yes, it will be a

          9  separate line item, we will have a contract, a

         10  maintenance contract, that will be in place.  The

         11  number, is there anyone here who can answer that?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  Good

         13  morning, I'm Doug Greeley, Deputy Commissioner for

         14  Water and Sewer Operations.  To answer the question,

         15  we have outstanding correspondence from you, we are

         16  still trying to put together the operating budget.

         17  As it stands right now, we have an ongoing $10

         18  million capital consultant contract under which

         19  we're doing the work right now, and we're

         20  supplementing that work with maintenance forces and

         21  out- of- pocket expenses as necessary.  We're trying

         22  to transition this from the first big jolt of

         23  getting it done into what we need year- to- year to

         24  maintain what we have built, so there are fencing

         25  contractors, sediment removal contractors.  We
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          2  expect to have that information complete probably by

          3  the end of this month, and then we will certainly

          4  share that with you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  Great.  One of

          6  the, well, a couple of things in the letter where I

          7  requested some information, maybe we can, they're

          8  not as difficult to answer, there is, Jolon Avenue,

          9  you announced last year that that pipe yard was

         10  obsolete now, and we're concerned with what will

         11  come hereafter.  One of the proposals that I made in

         12  the letter was that this be a permanent Bluebelt

         13  Headquarters on Staten Island.  I hope it is the

         14  intention of the agency to staff it with maintenance

         15  personnel on a permanent basis.  Are you able to say

         16  whether or not that is going to be the case?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  I

         18  happened to be out there last week, this board to

         19  discuss, we do intend to keep it as a permanent

         20  active facility at DEP, certainly for the Bluebelt,

         21  as that becomes established.  We also have some

         22  long- range plans to construct new facilities on

         23  Staten Island to house our maintenance and

         24  engineering forces, and we may need that as kind of

         25  a spill over while construction goes on.  Certainly,
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          2  it is ideally located for Bluebelt, it is a nice

          3  facility in a nice community, and one of the things

          4  that I'm looking to do right now is to, first of

          5  all, soften the appearance of the facility, it is in

          6  a rather nice neighborhood and it sticks out like a

          7  sore thumb.  We will be doing some plantings, and

          8  also the pipe fittings that are in the yard are

          9  being combed out, we're getting rid of, we're

         10  salvaging the obsolete material, and we plan on

         11  doing some things in there to maybe improve public

         12  access, or to improve further the appearance of the

         13  yard.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  How many

         15  personnel are assigned to the Bluebelt full time?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  At this

         17  point about five people and we have plans to

         18  increase that, probably another three.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  And the final

         20  question, this is a very parochial question, Mr.

         21  Chairman, but if you would indulge me, could we get

         22  that van assigned to that program so that they could

         23  use these probationers more productively?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  Yes,

         25  that is certainly our intent.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, I'm not

          3  sure that it is our intent to give up the entire

          4  space.  The issue is, we understand that there is an

          5  interest - -

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  No, the

          7  van.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The van, okay,

          9  yes.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA:  Thank you.

         11  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You're welcome,

         13  and I'm glad you went with what you did, the

         14  Commissioner did spend quite a bit of time on the

         15  Bluebelt issue, and it's a phenomenon, and I did

         16  indicate that there was some interest by myself and

         17  other members of the Committee to go visit the

         18  Bluebelt and see what is being done out there,

         19  because it sounded extremely interesting.

         20                 According to MMR and getting back to

         21  the subject at hand, DEP issued a total of 547

         22  notices of violation.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Are you using a

         24  list that has question numbers on it?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, one.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Maybe I

          4  shouldn't ask the questions, say one, and give me

          5  the answer, no.

          6                 Five hundred and forty- seven notices

          7  of violations for individual, residential septic

          8  tank systems, 337 environmental summonses and 43

          9  notices of warning throughout the watershed region.

         10  I understand there is an issue as to what

         11  adjudicatory body these notices of violations or

         12  summonses or issues of violation of the watershed

         13  regulations is returnable, where do they go, who

         14  adjudicates this?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  Okay,

         16  NOVs are not adjudicated, NOVs are notices of

         17  violation, we, you know, demand correction.  If the

         18  violation isn't corrected at that point, within a

         19  schedule that we give them, then we can refer and do

         20  that particular case than to a court, and it would

         21  be the appropriate court depending on the specific

         22  violation, in many cases it's the Town Court, it

         23  could be the County Court, could be State Supreme

         24  Court.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  They don't come
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          2  to ECB.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That was one of

          4  the reasons we were trying to figure it out, and do

          5  we think we get fair treatment in those local

          6  courts?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's getting

          8  fairer.

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  I

         10  think, historically, there were problems, I would

         11  defer to Counsel on that.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Mark, identify

         13  yourself, please?

         14                 MR. HOFFER:  My name is Mark Hoffer.

         15  I'm the General Counsel of DEP.

         16                 I think the Commissioner's comment is

         17  the most accurate, it's getting better, especially

         18  as people in the watershed become use to the

         19  regulations and understand more fully what they mean

         20  and what they require, we're having better results

         21  in court.  Of course, where we feel that we have

         22  been given less than a fair shake, you have got the

         23  Appellate Division, and we have a pretty good track

         24  record there.  So on the whole I think the picture

         25  is looking good.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I think it is

          3  important, and we have said this before, and I will

          4  say it again, we have educational programs where we

          5  go out into the community in the watershed and

          6  explain why those rules and regulations are as

          7  important to them as they are to us, because we

          8  share that land and we share that water, and I think

          9  that we're getting a better response as a result of

         10  it. They don't perceive of us as the carpetbagger

         11  coming in from outside the area to interfere in

         12  their own community, and, you know, Joe is the

         13  judge, and Charlie is the guy who we issued a notice

         14  of violation or summons to, we're getting much more,

         15  I think, reasonable response in the court system.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I appreciate

         17  it.  By the way, I did want to say, recognizing Mark

         18  Hoffer here, that I have enjoyed working with him

         19  for many years.  He is not going anywhere, I

         20  understand that, and - -

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, he is not

         22  leaving, I want to dispel a rumor you just started,

         23  and second of all, we're very pleased to work with

         24  him too.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  you should
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          2  understand that I have the highest regard for him, I

          3  think, he has worked with me with prior

          4  Commissioner, besides you, is something that I have

          5  relied upon and his integrity to me is unquestioned,

          6  I just wanted to go on the record on that.

          7                 When they have a notice of violation

          8  where you say it is not returnable, and how do they

          9  satisfy it, by a self certification or does the

         10  inspector go out to check it?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  Well,

         12  the inspector goes back and checks depending upon

         13  the nature of the violation.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  There is no

         15  self- certification process?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:

         17  Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  In other words,

         19  I'm a person who received a notice of violation, I

         20  am then do what has to, the remediation work and

         21  then I will write to you and say, look, I have

         22  satisfied the notice of violation?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  In many

         24  cases it involves septic systems, and we're involved

         25  in the approval of the repair, so we will go out - -

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  In other words,

          3  are they all checked by you or you just rely on

          4  self- certification?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  No, in

          6  most cases it's checked by us.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  In most cases,

          8  that means that there are some cases where it is

          9  not?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  I would

         11  say the vast majority of them, but we can do an

         12  analysis and see what kind does not require it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  No, that is not

         14  necessary, but the ones that you regard as serious,

         15  you make sure that they're all, like septic tanks

         16  and things like that?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You will go out

         19  and check them and make sure that there is not a

         20  problem there?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  Yes.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  By the way, in

         23  most of those cases, we're not the only ones who

         24  goes out and checks them.  If we find a failing

         25  sanitary system in a particular community, we issue
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          2  an NOV, but the local community officials will know

          3  about it also, and if they need to get a permit from

          4  us or have an inspection from us, they will come see

          5  us.  They, obviously, will need one from the local

          6  community, also, so there will be a second

          7  oversight.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  On these, could

          9  you give me a sort of analysis of, you don't have to

         10  give it to me now, you can give it to me later on as

         11  you can see the question, how many results in

         12  finding them guilty and the result in what type of

         13  violations there were, and breakdown the categories?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The other

         16  thing, I'm doing this by categories, this is all the

         17  issues under watershed protection.  Have we have any

         18  communication with the Department Corps of Engineers

         19  in respect to establishing regional conditions

         20  regarding the use nationwide permits in the

         21  watershed?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Yes.

         23  In fact, there are meetings Monday and Tuesday

         24  amongst all the parties, Corps of Engineers, state,

         25  local representatives, ourselves, the
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          2  environmentalists.  It is going to involve field

          3  visits and discussions around the wetland issue,

          4  hopefully to bring some consensus to - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  When do you

          6  think we're going to get a decision on the part of,

          7  on the Corps of Engineers as to the type of permits

          8  that they're going to permit in the wetlands?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  I

         10  think, my sense is, if consensus is not reached

         11  quickly, they're going to make a decision - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So they're

         13  looking for a consensus so that they can avoid

         14  making a decision?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Well, I

         16  think if they agree with the consensus - -

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Are you

         18  surprised?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  No.  If the

         20  judge at Microsoft is trying to reach a compromise,

         21  why not here?  If that is a proper analogy, I don't

         22  know, but - -

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAPIN:

         24  Diana Chapin, First Deputy Commissioner.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Diana.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAPIN:  I

          3  think it is important just to say that we're working

          4  very hard to come to a consensus with the other

          5  regulators, EPA and, you know, really have a

          6  position that everybody feels comfortable with, and

          7  that is the goal of the agency at this time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well if it is

          9  not going to protect the wetlands, I don't think we

         10  should feel comfortable with it.  I think it is

         11  important that we maintain and make sure that that

         12  decision is something that is going to protect the

         13  wetlands, and I think that is something that we

         14  should be very, very careful about.  I think you all

         15  feel the same way as I do.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, we do, but

         17  I think in all, you know, fairness, if we're dealing

         18  with an issue the question of what defines

         19  protection of wetlands and what defines other than

         20  protection of wetlands is in some cases in the eye

         21  of the beholder. If you own the land and you're

         22  living on the land, if you put a boat in the

         23  wetlands that might be defined by some people, who I

         24  would call degree environmentalists, as detrimental

         25  to the wetlands.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm talking

          3  about development.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, I don't

          5  think any of this really relates to development,

          6  because the only thing that would have been changed

          7  by what the Army Corps was talking about was the

          8  question of one- third of an acre.  One- third of an

          9  acre is not development, I mean, you don't develop

         10  on 12,000 square feet.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What do you do

         12  on one- third of an acre?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  On one- third of

         14  an acre you might put a plough in and you might

         15  contour, you know, a piece of property, that is what

         16  you might do.  It's not necessarily going to develop

         17  into a permanent structure - -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You could build

         19  a small shed or something.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: - -  it's an

         21  alteration of the wetland rather than a development.

         22                 Now, part of the problem here is, if

         23  somebody who has owned this land for 150 years and

         24  wants to take his tractor across, you know, a

         25  particular area and somebody says, no, you can't do
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          2  that, there is a great deal of umbrage taken by it,

          3  and if in fact what you need to do is go out and get

          4  yourself a specific permit, it effectively means

          5  that that individual can do absolutely nothing with

          6  the land, because the cost to get that permit, if

          7  you get a specific permit, means that you have to

          8  hire an engineer.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  There may be

         10  people that feel that strongly on that type - -

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Oh, there is no

         12  question, there are people that feel that strongly

         13  that is why the issue is there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It seems to me

         15  that any construction that is going to be on that

         16  one- third of an acre which in any way that is going

         17  to harm the wetland - -

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, well, but

         19  that is the issue, and that is why they are trying

         20  to reach a consensus as to what the impact is, and

         21  to define protection of the wetlands.  I mean, very

         22  clearly, one of the things that our agency is, has

         23  basically looked at on a very preliminary basis is

         24  there any logic as a protector of the watershed and

         25  the wetlands that go with it for the agency to
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          2  consider the creation of wetlands as being one of

          3  its functions in life?  I mean, we do a lot of

          4  environmental benefits programs, maybe that is one

          5  of the things we should be looking at.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Creating more

          7  wetlands?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The creation of

          9  wetlands, yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is

         11  interesting, but this is the first time that I have

         12  heard that mentioned.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, I mean - -

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And what is

         15  your answer to that?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well the answer

         17  is, we haven't reached conclusion on it on the

         18  wetlands, but clearly what we have been doing in

         19  Staten Island is just that, clearly what we did in

         20  Thurston Basin in Queens is just that, and we are

         21  interested in working, and we're going to be working

         22  up in the Bronx River doing just that.

         23                 Now if we can do it in the City of

         24  New York, why shouldn't we contemplate it and see it

         25  as positive in the watershed?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So you're

          3  studying that issue; is that right?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We're studying

          5  it right now.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We would

          7  appreciate having anything in that regard.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  As we reach

          9  conclusions, we will be happy to share them with

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The final issue

         12  with respect to the watershed area has been the

         13  concern over the highway project adjacent to Kensico

         14  Reservoir.  What role have you taken on this

         15  project, and what steps are you taking to ensure

         16  that these projects do not degrade the water supply?

         17                 I have always been made to

         18  understood, maybe I'm wrong, that one of the biggest

         19  threats to the watershed area has been the runoff

         20  from roads.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  You are correct,

         22  you are correct, and our role has been as basically

         23  protector of the environment, but I will ask Dr.

         24  Stasiuk to give you specifics as to where we're

         25  going.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Route

          3  120 is that stretch of road that is on the northeast

          4  side of Kensico. Currently, it is a two- lane road,

          5  DOT is proposing to upgrade it and the inner

          6  connections with Route 684.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  There is

          8  presently a road there, so we should understand

          9  that.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:

         11  Presently a road, there is also Route 22, which is a

         12  several mile four- lane road that goes right over

         13  Kensico and adjacent to Kensico for several miles,

         14  which is not on the table line this particular

         15  upgrade.

         16                 Procedurally, DOT has completed a

         17  supplement drafting, environmental impact statement,

         18  we have reviewed it, we are about to submit comments

         19  to them on that.  Basically, what we're going to say

         20  to them is that you should chose the least intrusive

         21  of the three alternatives, as long as it is - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Three

         23  alternatives meaning the routes taken?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Yes,

         25  well not so much the routes that are taken, but one
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          2  is a four- lane option, the other are expanded two-

          3  lane options.  And, I mean, they have to determine

          4  what constitutes appropriate traffic safety.  But

          5  we're pushing them to the alternative consistent

          6  with traffic safety, which makes the most sense.

          7                 The second thing is that they're

          8  going to have to put in state- of- the- art

          9  pollution control facilities, storm water pollution

         10  control facilities on, not only the expanded part of

         11  the highway, but they now will be picking up the

         12  existing highway.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Plus the

         14  existing, right.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Which

         16  means that we're basically saying the net pollution

         17  from this facility will be less than what there is

         18  now.

         19                 In addition to that, we're asking

         20  them, in fact, we're going to demand that they put

         21  into place a pollution prevention plan so that we

         22  don't wait for the pollutants to runoff the road the

         23  next time it rains, but rather they affirmatively go

         24  out and remove the pollutants from the street before

         25  it rains, you know, pretty much a street cleaning
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          2  program, and that would be not only - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Does those

          4  work, I mean, do they work anywhere?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK:  Oh,

          6  sure, absolutely. They're not 100 percent effective,

          7  if the timing if it rains, you know, at the wrong

          8  time of the schedule, but the concept is- -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It could

         10  protect the water from the runoff.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER STASIUK: - -  in

         12  addition to just treating everything that runs off,

         13  we will try and prevent material from running off as

         14  a positive step, so basically that is where that

         15  stands.

         16                 And, of course, we were instrumental

         17  in their, you know, putting out a supplement draft,

         18  environmental impact statement.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I think it is

         20  important, though, to recognize that each time we

         21  have raised an issue with State DOT, they have not

         22  attempted to, you know, to go to the mats, if you

         23  will, they have attempted to cooperate with us.

         24  They recognize it is extremely important, they

         25  recognize that it is extremely critical with respect
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          2  to the environment.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  And they have

          5  been responsive and responsible, I think, so far,

          6  and I'm comfortable that they will continue to do

          7  that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, I note

          9  from the MMR that we have a greater amount of water

         10  main breaks in the past year.  Is there any reason

         11  for that?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, again, the

         13  number usually runs between four and six hundred a

         14  year no matter what we do. We're comfortable that

         15  there has been no change in that basic, you know,

         16  parameter.  It has gotten cold over the last week or

         17  so, we have had some breaks, in fact, I had one in

         18  my own house.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That you had to

         20  wake up to?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, he is

         22  saying that the MMR shows that we have had more, but

         23  it probably shows that we have had more since the

         24  last time that the MMR came out, and again, that is

         25  usually a little bit behind, so.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I note also

          3  that even though we do, you do say that you have a

          4  programmatic replacement of water mains.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That there are

          7  no indicators in the MMR.  I remember in the past we

          8  did have some indicators showing the rate of

          9  replacement.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I can't explain

         11  it.  Doug, is there something in the MMR that talks

         12  about replacement of mains, et cetera?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  No, not that we

         14  can find.  I remember for years, from years past, we

         15  did have that.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I don't recall.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  As an indicator

         18  to what we're doing.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Is it in here?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  Yes, it

         21  is in the capital plan, it's rather robust - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Not in the MMR?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  No.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It use to be in

         25  the MMR years ago so that we could see how we're
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          2  coming, what is happening.

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  I

          4  believe you are correct, I think it was split out

          5  from DEP with the creation of the Department of

          6  Design and Construction.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, but it

          8  may be something that you might want to recommend to

          9  the - -

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well we give you

         11  the information any how, so I have no problem with

         12  giving you the information on a regular basis.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I understand

         14  that.  We have never, one thing I want to state for

         15  the record, we have never had a problem in supplying

         16  information to us - -

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Fine.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  from your

         19  agency.  Your agency has been sterling as far as

         20  that is concerned.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  One MMR

         23  objective is to ensure that 100 percent of waste

         24  water treatment plants effluent meets federal

         25  standards.  The Committee has stated for the past
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          2  three MMR's that this objective is not sufficient

          3  because of the new, stricter state standards.  We're

          4  recommending that a new objective be developed that

          5  ensures compliance with federal and state standards

          6  and show the number and type of violations received

          7  by City- owned sewerage treatment plants.  Could you

          8  provide us, the Committee, with the number and type

          9  of violations?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, we can, but

         11  I think it needs to be said, - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  By the way,

         13  that is number nine.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, and I have

         15  already tipped to that one.  I think it should be

         16  laid out carefully that essentially we do meet 100

         17  percent of the standards.  The problem is this is an

         18  operating system, and as in every operating system

         19  occasionally a pump will go down.  When a pump goes

         20  down there is an operational fault, we report it to

         21  the State, because we're obligated to do it, but

         22  essentially in the normal course of normal business,

         23  100 percent of the waste water, you know, effluent

         24  is treated.

         25                 Okay, do you want to expand on that,
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          2  Bob?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ADAMSKI:  The

          4  standards for the operating - -

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  State your name.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Identify

          7  yourself.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ADAMSKI:  I'm

          9  Robert Adamski. I'm Deputy Commissioner for Waste

         10  Water.

         11                 The primate that the state issues to

         12  us encompasses the federal regulations and

         13  requirements, so the standards for the state are not

         14  more restrictive than the federal, they're basically

         15  the same as the federal.  They put additional

         16  conditions into the permit, but it measures what the

         17  federal government requires the state to do to

         18  implement the Clean Water Act.

         19                 On the Discharge Monitor Report,

         20  which is what we submit to the state on a monthly

         21  basis for the 14 plants, we have 800 boxes to fill

         22  out each month.  Those boxes represent 13,216 values

         23  and that is what we use to measure the performance.

         24  In the last five years we have had about 1,325

         25  accedences of the values in those boxes, and that is
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          2  the two- tenths of a percent that were in non-

          3  compliance.

          4                 Some of the examples in addition to

          5  what the Commissioner mentioned with regards to the

          6  sewerage bypassing, particular limits at the plants

          7  might not be met because of various conditions.  For

          8  example, the Bowery Bay Plant has had problems

          9  meeting the SEQR Chloroform Standard, which is one

         10  of the measures of the effluent quality, and that

         11  has to do with the need to upgrade the mixing system

         12  for the sodium hypochlorite that is used in the

         13  effluent, and so at various plants we may have one

         14  or two accedences a month, but they are very, what

         15  we would consider minor in nature and don't result

         16  in water quality problems, they're more of a

         17  statistical problem for measuring up against the

         18  permanent values.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I think it is

         20  also important to recognize that there are health

         21  standards and there are aesthetic standards, we meet

         22  every single one of the health standards, we meet

         23  essentially all of the aesthetic standards, the one

         24  that we have difficulty with is color in the Croton

         25  system only, and quite frankly, you know, that is
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          2  one of the issues where we have had to weigh whether

          3  we need filtration or we don't need filtration.  If

          4  we put the, and when we put the filtration plant in

          5  on the Croton system that will relieve those issues.

          6                 So I think you have got to take a

          7  look at a lot of what we're dealing with in what

          8  we're laying out here, and as long as the standards

          9  that we meet are the health standards, we're

         10  protecting the public.  The aesthetic standards that

         11  we look at, I mean, we have a concern about and they

         12  may become mandates on the federal level sooner or

         13  later, but the issue is we have to see those as they

         14  go.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You have an

         16  obligation under the federal law to reduce the risk

         17  from lead in water.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And are you

         20  still putting the substance in the water that

         21  reduces the amount of lead?  The main problem as I

         22  understood it is the lead from the pipes of the

         23  buildings themselves.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is correct.

         25    There is no lead in our system that is detectable,
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          2  okay?  The place that we have the problem is we're

          3  obligated to test in buildings, and there is a test

          4  criteria and program that has been laid out, we're

          5  in the processing of testing now.  What we have to

          6  do, is, we have to get the number of the level of

          7  lead below a certain value in order for it to be

          8  clear, and it's 15 parts per billion.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But basically

         10  we're not going into all the details on it.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, without

         12  going into details, we have been approaching closer

         13  and closer to that level, and we had anticipated

         14  being in compliance for the year.  The last test we

         15  met the standard.  If we meet the standard for this

         16  time, I think we will have, you know, put that

         17  behind us for all time.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And you still

         19  have that program available to people in the City of

         20  New York who want to have their water tested?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Absolutely,

         22  anyone who wants their water tested for any

         23  particular health reason, all we need is a sample,

         24  we will either take it or you can send it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What is the
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          2  substance that you put into the water?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Excuse me?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What is the

          5  name of the substance that you put into the water?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Orthophosphate.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And that is

          8  still being done?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.  And what

         10  it does, is it puts a coating, and one of the

         11  reasons why we have been successful this time is

         12  that the last time that we did this we were not

         13  happy with the product we were using and we have

         14  kind of changed the product, and as a direct result

         15  of changing the product we think we have gotten a

         16  better protection on the lead pipes.  So we have

         17  gone to phosphoric acid from the orthophosphate, and

         18  we have found out that we are getting a better

         19  result.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And you do a

         21  regular monitoring of this?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Absolutely.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.  Now do

         24  you do any monitoring for lead in the water in New

         25  York City schools?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, we have an

          3  understanding with the Board of Education that if

          4  they have any concerns about the water in schools we

          5  will immediately respond and do whatever testing is

          6  appropriate, generally that is done in connection

          7  with the Health Department, obviously.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:   Okay, I

          9  understand it, but I would like to get from you, if

         10  you could, any statistics with relationship to any

         11  referrals that have been made by the New York City

         12  Board of Education?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Not a problem.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And I want to

         15  make sure that they're doing it.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  They are not shy

         17  about getting out to us and saying we would like you

         18  to do some testing, so, I mean, and we have met - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Let's see how

         20  shy they are.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is all I'm

         23  asking.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We have met 100

         25  percent of their requests for that testing and
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          2  citizens' requests for testing. I'm told that we had

          3  3,449 requests in the last year, fiscal year for

          4  testing and we have done all of those.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you have

          6  anybody here from the Department of - -  the

          7  Environmental Control Board?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is somebody

         10  here?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Absolutely, the

         12  Director.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Oh, the

         14  Director is here?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Oh, there she

         17  is, I see her. I didn't see her before, hi, how are

         18  you?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Is she up next?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes.  Of the

         21  total number of recycling summonses issued, could

         22  you provide the Committee with a breakdown of the

         23  results of the adjudication of these summonses in

         24  the Environmental Control Board dismissals, guilty,

         25  termination to be false, and the average civil
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          2  penalty imposed?

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  This is number

          4  13.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And what

          6  percentage of the recycling tickets that are given

          7  to the Board of Education are paid?  Because we

          8  understand that the Board of Education does receive

          9  from the Department of Sanitation, they do receive

         10  summonses from the Department of Sanitation, we were

         11  told that at the last hearing?

         12                 MS. MCCARTHY:  Yes, my name is Anne

         13  McCarthy.  I'm the Director of ECB.  They do receive

         14  violations from the Department of Sanitation.

         15  Unfortunately, I can't give you the statistics right

         16  here.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Could you give

         18  me those, do you have those statistics totally?

         19                 MS. MCCARTHY:  Sure.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Because we

         21  didn't realize at the last hearing that they were

         22  actually getting summonses.  So now we know they're

         23  getting summonses we would like to know, because we

         24  would like to get them to do much more as far as

         25  recycling is concerned.
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          2                 Let me go to the issue of water

          3  billing and metering and testing and conservation,

          4  starting on the bottom of page 6.  As an overall,

          5  could you give us an overall summary of how we're

          6  doing as far as reducing water billing mistakes and

          7  the water metering?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, we could

          9  start out by talking about water billing mistakes.

         10  One of the things I have an obligation to do and I

         11  do very, very freely is, I attend the Mayor's Town

         12  Hall conference, Town Hall meetings on a regular

         13  basis.  In the last 19 meetings that we have had

         14  there hasn't been a single question raised at one of

         15  those hearings about water billing.  So I'm very

         16  comfortable that the bills that we're sending out

         17  now are good bills.

         18                 In addition to that, the issue, of

         19  course, of where we are with respect to metering is

         20  that we have got about 130,000 meters still to

         21  install.  That as of June 30th of the year 2000,

         22  anyone who does not have a meter at their location

         23  will be paying a 100 percent surcharge of their

         24  frontage bill.  We are being, and you will hear from

         25  the Deputy Commissioner that we are getting extreme
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          2  attention from the folks that are out there, and we

          3  have a program that I am very comfortable with and

          4  that we're about to put to bed, although I haven't

          5  heard that it has gone to bed yet, but the New York

          6  City Housing Authority, et cetera, with respect to

          7  metering.  And with that I will turn it over to

          8  Deputy Commissioner Larry Schatt.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Could we

         10  get that date, the cutoff date?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That cutoff date

         12  was 30, June of the year 2000.  We expect well

         13  before that date that people will have told us that

         14  you're mistaken, we do have a meter if that is

         15  correct, and in most cases it's not, of course, or

         16  they have told us that they will have their plumber

         17  and they have a contract to install the meter, or

         18  they have told us we want you to put the meter in

         19  there.  If that occurs, any one of those three

         20  things occur, there will be no surcharge, it's only

         21  people who ignore us who will pay the surcharge.

         22  If, in fact, they ignore us and pay the surcharge

         23  and six months into the year 2000 into 2001 they

         24  install a meter, we will do a prorata on the

         25  surcharge so they only pay a six- month surcharge.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I want to

          3  acknowledge the fact that the question was by

          4  Council Member Helen Marshall from Queens, who has

          5  joined us in the Committee hearing, a member of the

          6  Committee.

          7                 Let, please, go right ahead.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHATT:  Larry

          9  Schatt, Deputy Commissioner, Bureau of Customer

         10  Conservation Services.

         11                 I guess there are two questions on

         12  the table.  In terms of the surcharge, we have sent

         13  letters to all elected officials in the City, I

         14  believe we did that in September, advising you of

         15  our plan.  We have now proceeded to send out 136,000

         16  accounts, receiving individual letters advising them

         17  of our plan and giving them the directions on how

         18  they install the meter either through our

         19  contractors or through their own contractor.  We

         20  have seen a response, which we have expected, a vast

         21  majority of people are saying yes, okay, I want to

         22  have a meter installed, and we see this as a very

         23  positive step.  We have tried voluntary compliance

         24  for a number of years, we have done outreaches

         25  throughout the City, we send a mailing with each
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          2  annual bill advising people that they must install a

          3  meter, we have done ads in local newspapers.  And

          4  we're sort of confused by the fact that many, many

          5  people have failed to respond to the voluntary

          6  solicitation.  We see no negatives to metering,

          7  quite honestly

          8                 Multiple dwellings have an option to

          9  stay on frontage billing or convert over to meter

         10  billing depending on the financial benefits to the

         11  building itself.  Six or more units, multiple

         12  dwellings have that option, one-, two-, three-

         13  family houses, we know historically had benefitted

         14  by converting to meter billing because they control

         15  their consumption, they can do many things including

         16  changing their own habits and the habits of maybe

         17  some of the neighbors, and we have seen frontage

         18  billing at $400, $500 drop to as low as $250,

         19  especially when we have senior citizens who are now

         20  alone in a big house.  So we see many positives and

         21  no negatives, and very confused and sort of

         22  frustrated why we had to go to a surcharge when the

         23  program has a lot of positives.

         24                 We believe that the perception of the

         25  world over the years that meter billing was creating
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          2  problems both in terms of bad bills and higher

          3  costs, and I think we have tried to disprove that, I

          4  think that we have been very successful in

          5  disproving that over time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  One of the

          7  objections, which I believe you have met and the

          8  Commissioner can then go some further on, is the

          9  fact that it helped to conserve water.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHATT:

         11  Absolutely.  It's one of many things that we have

         12  done, but it is a major factor.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It is the main

         14  objective, it's not a revenue reducer.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHATT:  Actually

         16  it is a revenue reducer, because as people use less

         17  water, we're, obviously going to collect a little

         18  bit of less money, but if we're able to improve our

         19  collection rate, then we're able to compensate for

         20  that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, continue

         22  your good work in that regard.  Commissioner, did

         23  you want to comment on that?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, I think one

         25  of the things that has become obvious to me over the
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          2  years is the fact that I thought there was only one

          3  thing in life that people took for granted and that

          4  was air, oxygen.  You know, we sit here, we inhale,

          5  we exhale, no one ever questions the fact it is

          6  going to be there, you expect it to be there, if

          7  it's not there you are going to be very, very

          8  unhappy very, very quickly, but the same thing

          9  pertains to water.

         10                 I go out to speak to lake groups and

         11  ask them where the water comes from, you get a very,

         12  very confused look on their face.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  From the

         14  faucet.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  They say it

         16  comes out of the faucet, if you ask them about how

         17  does it get into the faucet it's starts to get real

         18  grey and there is a very quiet, you know, sense.

         19  They really don't understand, you know, that

         20  somebody has to do something to bring it into the

         21  house.  Now, that is remarkable on the one side

         22  because it means we have been so ubiquitous in being

         23  able to provide the service that everyone absolutely

         24  takes it for granted, because I don't think there is

         25  anything else in life that people do take for
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          2  granted, including food, clothing, and shelter.

          3                 But the answer is, water they take

          4  for granted, and air to breathe they take for

          5  granted.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It does allow

          7  you, as it does me, on occasion to explain to people

          8  this marvel of engineering, this miracle that takes

          9  place in Upstate New York to feeding us down here,

         10  with the water, because it is a wonderful story when

         11  people, who learn about it and learn what is

         12  happening, I think they're taken.  So it gives us an

         13  opportunity to talk, which some of us like to do.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, it does.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  In the goals

         16  and objectives, I'm talking, we're now looking at

         17  page 3, question 7, in the goals and objectives of

         18  Fiscal 1998, the MMR contained an objective that DEP

         19  entered into agreements with owners of non- city-

         20  owned waste water treatment plants in the watershed

         21  for design, construction, operation and maintenance

         22  of the plants.  This objective was eliminated from

         23  the Fiscal 1999 MMR, and I don't know why.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It has no

         25  meaning any more, I will tell you why, because the
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          2  question really was, are you going enter into an

          3  agreement with these?  The answer is, yes, we are,

          4  we have agreements with 99 out of 102 of them, I'm

          5  sorry, 103, and as of today we have an agreement

          6  with every single one of the operating waste water

          7  treatment plants.  So the answer is 100 percent, and

          8  the question no longer has any meaning, so that is

          9  why it was taken out of the MMR.

         10                 There is going to be a period of time

         11  during which they will present us with design

         12  concept of how they expect to do this, we will

         13  examine those and approve those or criticize those,

         14  they will then come to us with a construction

         15  contract that they will enter into themselves that

         16  we will approve of or criticize, they will

         17  eventually do the work, and all during the course of

         18  this we will providing them with only money as they

         19  meet each criteria. But we have the agreements in

         20  place and we're very comfortable.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The most

         22  important thing is the time frame here, because the

         23  quicker they clean up their act, the better chances

         24  that the water is going to be in better condition.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, keep this
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          2  in mind, we have been providing remarkably clean

          3  water, notwithstanding the fact that 103 waste water

          4  treatment plants dump their effluent into our

          5  drinking water.  Once we get the improvements that

          6  are made here, we will get, basically a one shot

          7  increase in the purity of the water as it starts

          8  down the pipe without doing anything to it, that

          9  will be an all time increase, because once they

         10  upgraded the tertiary treatment, that is the

         11  standard that they will have to meet from that point

         12  on.  So its, while it's important that it get done

         13  as quickly as possible, because we get the maximum

         14  benefit out of it, the answer is, it's not just

         15  maintaining, it's a status, you know, a clear leap

         16  in the quality of the kind of effluent that you are

         17  getting into the water, and as a direct result a

         18  much higher standard for starting the water down the

         19  pipe.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I have this

         21  idea that it is kind of out of it in the sense that,

         22  you know, we test our water thousand of times a day,

         23  as I understand it.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And whereas
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          2  some of the bottled water, companies that produce

          3  bottled water maybe do some testing, but not the

          4  frequency of ours, that our water is probably much

          5  purer than much of the bottled water that is being

          6  sold.  And that when we do such a great thing and

          7  make water even more pure, instead of going to

          8  Poland or wherever they go to get the water, Lake

          9  Poland or whatever it is, they are going to be using

         10  our water and it is going to be a sap in our water.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, every once

         12  in a while I get invited to a function at which they

         13  put bottled water on the table and I kind of cringe.

         14    The bottom line is, if you look at the cost of

         15  bottled water, it's thousand of times what you are

         16  paying for New York City water, which is easily of

         17  the same quality, if not in most cases, better

         18  quality.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So Sir, which

         20  leads you to the conclusion that perhaps there is an

         21  industry that we're missing in New York City, and

         22  that is selling our water elsewhere.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, let's put

         24  it this way, if other people are taking advantage of

         25  the public, I would hate to think that we are going
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          2  to climb on the bandwagon.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm not talking

          4  about our public, export our water - -

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We need to

          6  educate the public that they are wasting their money

          7  on something.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  export our

          9  water to other places in the world.  Because I just

         10  came back from a trip where they were selling water

         11  and it was water coming from all over the place,

         12  including the United States.  So perhaps we're

         13  missing something here, if we have enough water to

         14  supply to our populace, perhaps this is a revenue

         15  producing, you have heard it here, maybe, probably

         16  other people have thought about it.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We actually have

         18  thought about it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.  Council

         20  Member Marshall has a question.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chair.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I should say we

         24  have another 15 minutes before we must vacated the

         25  premises.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Okay.  The

          3  Clean Air, Clean Water Bond Act of 1996, have we

          4  developed any projects on it, are any new projects

          5  on board, how is the funding going, and also, what

          6  are we doing about Brown Fields which is also

          7  indicated in the Bond Act.

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:

          9  Good afternoon. I'm Joe Singleton, Assistant

         10  Commissioner for - -

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Joe

         12  Singleton?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:

         14  Singleton, yes. There has been a total of two rounds

         15  that we have made applications on.  The first round

         16  we made a total of 64 applications, we had 10

         17  approved.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Would you

         19  speak into the mic?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:  We

         21  had 10 approved at $16.8 million.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Still not

         23  in the microphone, you should sound like me.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:

         25  The largest one being the CSO tanks in Flushing.
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          2                 A second round - -

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Oh, tell me

          4  about those, oh, the big one, okay, all right, I

          5  know that one.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:

          7  The second round we have put a total of 24

          8  applications in and we have yet to hear on any of

          9  those, and that is sort of Statewide rating that

         10  they go through again.

         11                 The original 65 do not fall off the

         12  table, they're again recategorized, so the list gets

         13  bigger, it doesn't get smaller.  Each round is

         14  inclusive, not exclusive.

         15                 In addition to that we finance - -

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Are those

         17  64, in other words, they're ongoing projects,

         18  they're not new, is that it?

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:

         20  They're both new and ongoing projects, but my point

         21  being was, just because they didn't get funded in

         22  the first round, they don't fall off, it becomes a

         23  growing list.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  They stay on the

         25  table.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:

          3  They stay on the table.  In addition to that we have

          4  done about $163 million in one third interest rate

          5  subsidies with the State under the Drinking Water

          6  State Revolving Fund, and our funding in that

          7  program is somewhat cyclical.  We have a lot of

          8  large projects, the largest one being the water

          9  tunnel, that was funded in excess of $150 million.

         10  We're currently talking with the State to get other

         11  components of the tunnel, upgraded in the technical

         12  scorings because we have some differences in opinion

         13  has to how they arrive at their scoring.  But I am

         14  confident we will be doing large loans with them

         15  under that program, as well, for the tunnel.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Well, I'm

         17  familiar with the water tunnel, and certainly the

         18  Flushing Container system. Could you just describe

         19  some of the other programs?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:

         21  Sure, some of the other programs are, under the Bond

         22  Act are, work in North River, Bronx River outfall

         23  extension, Jamaica Water Pollution Control Plant,

         24  Tomins Island, Hunts Point, three relatively small

         25  wetlands restorations near the plants.  They really

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            130

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  run the gamut.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  All right.

          4  Well, a key question that we're all concerned about

          5  are the Brown Fields, could you elaborate on how

          6  we're plugging into that?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER SINGLETON:

          8  I'm going to defer to Joe Kietas on that one on the

          9  Brown Fields.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Okay.

         11                 MR. KIETAS:  Hi, I'm Joe Kietas,

         12  Director of the Office of Environmental Planning and

         13  Assessment.

         14                 The City is actively trying to

         15  identify sites to apply for Brown Fields Grants.  I

         16  can't give you a complete tally of those sites right

         17  now, because the program is managed out of the

         18  Mayor's Office of Environmental Coordination.  So I

         19  can get you that list.  We act as the technical

         20  advisors to the Mayor's Office on the programs, and

         21  we have a few active projects going now with the

         22  Housing Preservation Development, the Department of

         23  Housing Preservation Development in the Bushwick

         24  Urban Renewal area and the Melrose Commons Urban

         25  Renewal area.  We have a project of our own running
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          2  now under the Brown Fields Grant at the Barretta

          3  Point site.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Where is

          5  Barretta Point?

          6                 MR. KIETAS:  In the Bronx, it is in

          7  the south Bronx. And the Parks Department has a

          8  couple of grants, the Economic Development

          9  Corporation has a couple of grants.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  What does

         11  the Parks Department, what are the Parks Department

         12  projects look like, or where are they?

         13                 MR. KIETAS:  The Parks Department is

         14  working on one now in the Vernon Barbados section of

         15  Queens, and I'm not sure, they have a couple of

         16  other sites, like I said, I can get you the complete

         17  list, and a complete tally.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  We could

         19  almost give you a list.  There are many spots in

         20  Queens.

         21                 MR. KIETAS:  Yes, well one of the,

         22  there are a couple of issues that we have raised

         23  with the State about the program that would make it

         24  more effective, frankly, and now it is only

         25  applicable to municipally- owned sites.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            132

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:

          3  Municipally- owned sites?

          4                 MR. KIETAS:  Yes, and a lot of

          5  Community Boards and other groups are nominating

          6  sites that are privately- owned, basically, and

          7  can't apply those sites at this point in time.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Now the

          9  Jamaica Water Supply is now owned by the City, how

         10  about, are you doing anything about that?

         11                 MR. KIETAS:  Well, we did our own

         12  site investigations of all of those pieces of

         13  properties, after, shortly after the purchase of

         14  those properties.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  And

         16  Flushing Bay?

         17                 MR. KIETAS:  The Flushing Bay CSO

         18  Facility that site investigation was done ourselves.

         19                 One of the other issues with the

         20  Brown Fields Grant program, we find, is that it

         21  takes a significant amount of time to go through the

         22  grant application process and then to work with the

         23  State to get a record of decision and move forward

         24  with the remediation.  Most of our own projects are

         25  done under Consent Orders and have strict time
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          2  frames, so it is, frankly, more efficient and even

          3  more cost- effective in the end for us to do the

          4  review ourselves.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  In your

          6  regular cyclical or complaint, I don't know whether

          7  it is cyclical or complaint driven, review of

          8  violations that lead to Brown Fields, is that part

          9  of this or has that project been enhanced through

         10  this?

         11                 MR. KIETAS:  All right, are you

         12  thinking of the Right to Know program?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, could

         14  be, right, okay.  Well there is one that I know of,

         15  it has been contaminating the boarder line of

         16  Flushing Bay there, Leeza Construction, now it's

         17  something else, and they have been putting chemicals

         18  and construction materials into, they have built a

         19  mountain and so far nobody has done anything about

         20  it.

         21                 MR. KIETAS:  But if you have any

         22  information about a site that might have a problem.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  I have

         24  given it to you, I will give it to you again.

         25                 MR. KIETAS:  Yes, you can give to us
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          2  in writing.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Okay.  All

          4  right.  One other quickly, some of my colleagues

          5  might have some more questions on the Brown Fields,

          6  okay.

          7                 The other one is, what about the

          8  alternative fuel program, could you please describe

          9  what you're doing about that, particularly with City

         10  vehicles?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TAZEE (phonetic):

         12  Louis Tazee, Deputy Commissioner for Management and

         13  Budget.  We are complying with Local Law 6 that we

         14  are purchasing approximately 20 percent of our

         15  vehicles, our alternative fuel vehicles.  We have

         16  not been able to meet the goal completely and that

         17  due to purchasing problems, contracts, et cetera.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Twenty

         19  percent, what about the rest, the 80 percent?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TAZEE:  Twenty

         21  percent of your, I'm sorry, you're right, 80 percent

         22  of our vehicles we're purchasing, are purchased as

         23  alternative fuel vehicles in our light duty

         24  vehicles.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Do you have
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          2  a time frame for when you will be complying with it,

          3  more like 100 percent?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TAZEE:  Well,

          5  we're hopeful of by reaching our target of next year

          6  that we would be able to comply by next year.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Surface

          8  buses that are owned by the City?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TAZEE:  That is

         10  not us.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  That is not

         12  you?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, it's only

         14  internal Department purchases that we're

         15  responsible.  We don't run the program City- wide.

         16                 I think that it would be interesting

         17  though if you told the Councilwoman the number of

         18  vehicles that we have of alternative fuels, if you

         19  have the numbers off the top of your head?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TAZEE:  Yes, we

         21  currently have 259 of our vehicles are alternate

         22  fuel vehicles.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That includes

         24  electric, gas, CNG, we are looking at purchasing,

         25  there is a new variety of alternative fuel vehicle
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          2  coming out which is a mixture of gasoline and

          3  battery.  We are exploring that because that

          4  probably has the best long- term solution to the

          5  problem, because it doesn't require you to be at a

          6  tether if you are an electrical vehicle, and it

          7  doesn't require you to go to a CNG station, you can

          8  go to a regular gasoline station, gas up, and you're

          9  still able to get back out on the road.  The mileage

         10  that you're getting back out of those is somewhere

         11  in the neighborhood of 80 to 90 miles to the gallon,

         12  which is remarkable.  So for our lightweight, normal

         13  utility vehicles we're interested in exploring that,

         14  if it works out for us next year.  We can't get them

         15  until next year, when we do get them we will need at

         16  least a year to evaluate them and then we will work

         17  from there.

         18                 A year ago we picked up 20 electrical

         19  RAV 4's, we have gone through a season with them,

         20  that is a summer, we're about to go through a winter

         21  with them to understand what they're capable of.  I,

         22  myself, have used them, they're interesting

         23  vehicles, they will accelerate onto a high rate much

         24  better than the older ones would, you can get longer

         25  distance out of them, they have got air conditioning
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          2  that works very well.  But, again, I'm not sure,

          3  they still need to go to a tether, we have tethers

          4  mounted on the roof at Corona, and we're running the

          5  fleet.  We have got some of them at our waste water

          6  treatment plants where they're on- site usage. We

          7  have got some of them with the water metering unit

          8  where their is a regular route for the individual

          9  and that they're appropriate for that.

         10                 We expect within the next six months

         11  to a year to have a feeling for whether they make

         12  any sense.  It will be interesting to see whether

         13  the manufacturer continues to supply them or whether

         14  they see this combination of gasoline and battery as

         15  being a better solution, I think that they probably

         16  will.  CNG we are working with DCAS to end up with a

         17  fueling station for my vehicles because we have

         18  hundreds of CNG vehicles, and at this present time

         19  it is a very inefficient operation because although

         20  we have got the alternative fuel vehicle, in order

         21  to get the alternative fuel into the vehicle we have

         22  got to go a long distance and we lose about 16 to 20

         23  percent of the man hours that an individual uses to

         24  ride that to go back and forth to pick up the fuel,

         25  which must be picked up every day because of the
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          2  size of the tanks and the range of the vehicles.

          3                 There is a Gasoteria Station right

          4  out in front of our building that we're looking to

          5  pick up a piece of property on to drop a CNG

          6  refueling station there, so that there is absolutely

          7  no lost time in coming back in and going out from

          8  the building, that has been an absolute bear to get

          9  done just because of the normal procurement

         10  processes of the City of New York, and we are hoping

         11  that we will be able to put that to bid this year.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  All right,

         13  well, you said a 259 vehicles out of how many?

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER TAZEE:

         15  Approximately 1,800 light duty vehicles.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  You see the

         17  concern that we all have, we all understand water,

         18  air is a little more complicated to understand, but

         19  we do know that asthma and other ailments are

         20  developing with people, with lungs and our breathing

         21  apparatus, and this one area that I think we are

         22  kind of moving slowly on, that is really my concern

         23  here.  And we have other vehicles too, we have

         24  airports, but cars, automobiles and trucks are

         25  really polluting the air seriously and I think just
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          2  to have a 20 percent compliances doesn't speak too

          3  well for our City, we need to be moving much closer

          4  to the 80 percent.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, 80 percent

          6  is the criteria, 20 percent, okay?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, are you

          8  finished?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  One other

         10  thing I do want to add, the gentleman who spoke on

         11  Brown Fields, he described, gave us a little bit of

         12  update, but it will be good if our Chairperson was

         13  able to get a really accurate update on what we're

         14  doing with the Brown Fields?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No problem we

         16  will take care of it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I will ask for

         18  that.

         19                 Mr. Sabini.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Just to

         21  follow- up, Council Member Marshall's question, you

         22  said you're looking at the CNG, having a CNG fueling

         23  station at the Gasoteria location, which abuts our

         24  district, and I'm just wondering does that mean that

         25  you are going to take over that station?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No, we need

          3  about a 50 X 40 spot to drop down a CNG.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Where are

          5  your other ones now, you described it before?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We don't have

          7  ones in the agency, we go to the Parks Department

          8  one in Flushing Meadows, Corona, or we go up to Long

          9  Island City there is another there. DCAS would like

         10  us to use the one on the west side of Manhattan,

         11  which, obviously, you know.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  The one on

         13  the west side is on the river, correct?

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is correct.

         15    It is totally useless to me, most of my vehicles

         16  are in Queens.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Where is the

         18  west side one?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's on the

         20  river at about, 46th Street.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  And the one

         22  in Long Island City is also on the river, as I

         23  believe, on the East River?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I'm not even

         25  sure, I have never been to it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  I have got to

          3  tell you that, Commissioner - -

          4                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's at the Con

          5  Edison facility location.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Which is on

          7  the river.  Now, we want you to use CNG, but this

          8  Gasoteria is right by cooperative apartments that

          9  Council Member Marshall and I represent, as well as

         10  all of your workers.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  And I would

         13  want to have some dialogue with the agency before

         14  this goes in, because as I recall when one was

         15  talked about near LaGuardia Airport, it was quickly

         16  shot down as an idea by the Port of Authority

         17  because local residents were complaining that - -

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  What is the

         19  issue?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  They raised

         21  some safety issues, I would want to have a dialogue

         22  with you.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  There are no

         24  safety issues on low- pressured gas.  The only place

         25  the high- pressured gas is in the vehicles
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          2  themselves, the vehicles are there.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Okay, all I'm

          4  saying is before you - -

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  There is no

          6  control over the vehicles.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: - -  put it

          8  in, why don't you talk to us, so that we can have

          9  some assurances because ultimately the buck stops at

         10  our desk when the community complains.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The answer is,

         12  it will be absolutely transparent to the community,

         13  I don't see any impact on the community whatsoever.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Okay.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  In fact, in all

         16  candor, it makes more sense for me to put it on the

         17  roof of my building then put it out in a public

         18  street.  But if you put it out in the public street,

         19  the answer is that any other vehicles, including

         20  taxis and other governmental vehicles would be able

         21  to use it as they go on and off the Long Island

         22  Expressway coming in and out of Queens.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  All I'm

         24  asking you is for the folks in Sherwood Village and

         25  Leffrak City that you have a dialogue with us before
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          2  you do it, that is all.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Sure.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  On this issue,

          6  which is an issue that I have taken up the cudgels

          7  for years now and with every agency that comes

          8  before us we always ask them what they're doing as

          9  far as complying with Local Law 6, and it seems to

         10  me that you should know that there are people today

         11  who still think that the fluoride in the water is

         12  dangerous to people.  So you are always going to

         13  have people making up stories and starting - -

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I don't think

         15  they are making up stories, I think they truly

         16  believe it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  No, no, but I'm

         18  saying - -

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The answer is,

         20  yes, they just don't understand the science.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is what

         22  I'm saying, as a matter of fact, I had to go over to

         23  Israel and bring with me fluoride drops so that my

         24  grandson could have fluoride in the water so that he

         25  could have the protection of fluoride, and I had to
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          2  get a prescription from a doctor in order to be able

          3  to get those fluoride drops, as strange as that may

          4  seem.

          5                 But it seems that is almost like a

          6  Catch- 22, and it's a classic Catch- 22, is one of

          7  the reasons that we don't have more of these

          8  vehicles is because we don't have dispensers of the

          9  CNG, and one of the reasons we don't have dispensers

         10  of CNG and because we don't have more vehicles who

         11  want to use these.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The

         13  manufacturers are not really thrilled with providing

         14  these vehicles, because generally they cause

         15  significantly then gasoline operated vehicles and

         16  have significant problems associated with them, like

         17  refueling, and like the fact if it is a sedan you

         18  have no trunk because the CNG tanks fill up the

         19  entire trunk.  Now, you know, we got some, in fact,

         20  they gave me a Ford, I have forgotten the name of

         21  the vehicle, Explorer, a Ford Explorer, which I was

         22  very pleased with, and then they converted it into a

         23  CNG vehicle which is lovely, and now there isn't

         24  enough room to put a hard hat in the back seat of

         25  the truck. So what the hell is the point of owning

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  the vehicle, if I'm now back to effectively four

          3  seats, I might just as well have a Taurus, I mean,

          4  there is no logic to the thing.

          5                 Not only that, we bought the vehicle

          6  and paid a fairly substantial premium to have the

          7  CNG installed in it, and by the way, it is an

          8  emergency vehicle, which means if I get, if I run

          9  out of fuel in the middle of an emergency run, it's

         10  a big paperweight at that point, it's totally

         11  useless for anything else.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But I'm not

         13  encouraging it, but they do have vehicles available

         14  which allow you to use gas, and cut into gas.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  There is no

         16  question, we are, but there is no logic going and

         17  buying a CNG vehicle at a substantial premium, and

         18  then burning, you know, low test gasoline in it, you

         19  know, that is the height of cynicism, quite frankly.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The height is

         21  the Catch- 22 issue, which is a sequay into the next

         22  question.  Just recently there have been reports in

         23  the New York Times of the study that was made, I

         24  think it was a federal study, to the effect that the

         25  air quality in New York is not as good as it should
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          2  be, I'm sure you have read those studies.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The federal

          4  government has a very interesting approach to

          5  environmental, you know, logic.  There logic is

          6  whatever standard you got now, is not going to be

          7  the standard next year, so you never meet the

          8  standard.  If you ever get to the point in the City

          9  of New York where you meet the current standard, I

         10  will guarantee you that within 12 months they will

         11  have another standard, they will be back out at you

         12  telling you, you don't meet the standard.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I guess they

         14  guess the true nature is to measure it against the

         15  past.

         16                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Is the what?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is the measure,

         18  the current quality of air against the past quality

         19  of air?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  That is exactly

         21  correct.  What you have to look at is what was the

         22  problem that you had last year or last decade, or 20

         23  years ago or 30 years ago, and the answer is the

         24  environment is improving.  Now, I don't think it's

         25  wrong of the federal government to attempt to
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          2  ratchet that down as fast as they can, or faster

          3  than we were doing it.  But the answer is, you have

          4  to take a look at the balance of that thing, because

          5  frankly it cost money to do all of this stuff.

          6                 I think we have agreed and the State

          7  Attorney General, and the Governor have agreed that

          8  to a large extent the problems that we have in air

          9  quality in the City of New York are generated by

         10  communities west of us.  We have a continual wind

         11  that blows from the west towards the east on a

         12  regular basis.  We are picking up Ohio, Indiana - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Coming from

         14  such places as the Essex County incinerator.

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Say that again?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Coming from

         17  such places as the Essex County incinerator.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Yes, and it's

         19  coming, frankly, over from Jersey's Petroleum

         20  Refineries, et cetera.  But it comes from much

         21  further than that, it comes, literally, from the

         22  Midwest of the United States and gradually increases

         23  the numbers here.  If we only had to deal with our

         24  pollution, we would meet the standards.  The problem

         25  is this an additive process, we have got whatever we
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          2  generate plus whatever is wind driven and brought

          3  over to here from the west.

          4                 So yes, there is a lawsuit presently

          5  where the State of New York has joined a lot of the

          6  states in the New England area, and we are suing the

          7  states west of us.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I was going to

          9  mention the Attorney General's suits of individual

         10  plants in the Midwest on that.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Also

         12  I think the trucks that come in don't have the

         13  emission standards that we have in New York City and

         14  New York State.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well, the big

         16  issue as far as I can understand it from my reading

         17  is diesel fuel, and a lot of that is attributed to

         18  the rise of the asthma of children.  And we're

         19  trying to get, which is a horrible thing that has

         20  been reported today, and I just wonder what

         21  regulatory authority you do have against the MTA

         22  giving us diesel fuel buses, and their newest

         23  purchases are going to be diesel fuel buses at the

         24  same time permitting, rather supplying to Long

         25  Island 400 buses which are CNG, and saying the
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          2  reason that they're doing it is because of the fact

          3  that the City of New York needs the buses so much

          4  more.  And they can outfit their particular bus

          5  depots with CNG and they should be doing it.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Well, one - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And especially

          8  in a neighborhood such as mine, where we have so

          9  many of these bus depots and such a high rise in

         10  asthma conditions of children.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  What one has to

         12  remember though, is we will need fueling for those,

         13  so that is the same issue that came up a little

         14  earlier.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But they have

         16  the depots in which they can do it.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I appreciate

         18  that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And it is much

         20  easier for them because they go on set routes, they

         21  know their timing, they know everything, - -

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The problem - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  - -  and

         24  services other than going back and forth on their

         25  route, and going back and forth to their bus depot.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The problem that

          3  I think you will find is, and I'm not sure why they

          4  do this, diesel fuel works beautifully if you are

          5  running at high speed on a diesel engine and a

          6  constant velocity, because it is a highly efficient

          7  cycle engine.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well, they're

          9  not going to have that in New York City.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The problem is

         11  if you put it on a bus,  the bus accelerates, the

         12  bus brakes, the accelerates, the bus brakes, and

         13  every time a diesel engine accelerates from

         14  basically an idle up, there is an emission out of

         15  that that you don't get at a constant speed.

         16                 Now we talked earlier about the fact

         17  that we're looking at some Japanese vehicles that

         18  will be coming in with a gasoline engine and

         19  batteries.  The gasoline engine runs at a constant

         20  rate, it does not run the vehicle, all it does is

         21  charge the battery.  So it is constantly accelerated

         22  to the rate where it is bringing out the least

         23  amount of emissions, because it is running at the

         24  most efficient velocity, and you don't accelerate,

         25  brake, accelerate, brake.  Now you need to consider
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          2  that, and I'm not, you know, I don't have anything

          3  to do with the MTA or the Transit Authority, but I

          4  have enough technical background to understand that,

          5  you know, there are good things to use and there are

          6  poor things to use, and that is a poor thing to use

          7   - -

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We agree on

          9  that.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: - -  they are not

         11  good for start, stop.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Then, Sir, may

         13  I humbly and respectfully request that you as the

         14  person most responsible for the air quality of the

         15  City of New York, ask that you be heard or at least

         16  the Mayor be heard on the plans of the MTA to

         17  purchase vehicles which are going to pollute the air

         18  of our City and cause our standard, and cause asthma

         19  among our children.  I think you agree and I agree

         20  with you 100 percent what your diagnosis of the

         21  problem is, but I think it is incumbent upon all of

         22  us to be the legislative body, namely the Council,

         23  and your agency which is the agency in charge to

         24  speak with one voice, together with the Mayor, to

         25  say, Mr. MTA, don't give us those buses, and treat
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          2  us as if we were Long Island and give us CNG buses,

          3  and if you can't do it right away, at least have a

          4  plan in foot, develop a delivery system of the fuel

          5  so the buses can use it.  Because that is certainly

          6  one of the air, we cannot control the trucks coming

          7  into the City of New York, that interstate comes,

          8  but we can control and we should be able to

          9  influence the MTA to stop giving us these diesel

         10  engine fuel.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  You know -

         12   -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Can I, please,

         14  beseech you to make your voice heard on this?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We will pass it

         16  on.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Probably

         18  the most - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And to be an

         20  advocate on this?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Okay, my

         22  Chairman is hot on that one.  It's probably the most

         23  startling experience is riding behind a bus, driving

         24  behind a bus or standing on the sidewalk as it puffs

         25  out seemingly the worst kind of air possible, and so
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          2  it is something that is noticed by the public.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  No question.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  And when

          5  they idle, and they do idle from time to time, there

          6  is always idling involved.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is

          8  absolutely true.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  It's

         10  terrible.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But let me just

         12  add one other factor, this purchase plan where they

         13  are not buying as many CNG buses as they should, is

         14  part of the capital plan, which recently I testified

         15  to before the State Legislature, and it is my

         16  understanding that one of ways of shooting down

         17  this, is by a threatened veto by the Mayor, and I

         18  would ask the Mayor, and I would ask you to advise

         19  the Mayor that he should use his, the power of veto

         20  to persuade them to be in compliance with that which

         21  we all know is the health standard, and that is

         22  extremely important.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Because we all

         25  believe in it. Evidently, there appears to be a
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          2  continuing problem with odor at the North River

          3  Sewerage Trend, but everyone is being parochial, so

          4  I will be a little more parochial.  My office has

          5  reviewed the odor monitoring reports for almost

          6  every month this year, and each of what indicates

          7  that the emissions inside the plant exceed

          8  acceptable levels.  Despite the $55 million worth of

          9  improvements made to the plant, what is causing this

         10  problem and what are we doing about it?

         11                 And I, in the past, have found that

         12  one of the problems has been, I cannot make this

         13  allegation, and I won't make this allegation, except

         14  to state that in the past we have found that the

         15  maintenance had caused some of the odors, the

         16  systems were okay.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER ADAMSKI:  Robert

         18  Adamski, Deputy Commissioner for Waste Water.

         19                 The implant monitors were set up to,

         20  in essence, provide a early warning system of

         21  possible problems out in the community.  We have

         22  regularly monitored for H2S and responded to

         23  occasional complaints, there have not been many

         24  complaints with regards to odors from North River.

         25  The monitoring indicates that we are below the
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          2  levels that create any problems.  We are in the

          3  process of completing, the end of construction study

          4  that was required, and the indication is that the

          5  sources from other areas, like traffic, create an

          6  H2S background level.  When we respond to the

          7  instances, we have an odor team at the plant that

          8  maintains all the odor control equipment, we have a

          9  contract ready to be bid, to rebuild the south odor,

         10  we respond to the complaints as we receive them.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, thank

         12  you.  I just want you to be vigilant on that, it is

         13  extremely important.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Mr.

         15  Chairman, can I just- -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Council Member

         17  Marshall.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, you

         19  know there is an area in our, in Queens that is

         20  known as Asthma Alley, and that is going from the

         21  Big Alice all the way out to the airport, and, of

         22  course, we have Grand Central Parkway.  I know that

         23  all of these are not within your jurisdiction, but

         24  you are our body, you are who we talk to.  Is there

         25  some coordination or, you know, around the air
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          2  quality in that area and the things that are emitted

          3  from all of this together, and in fact, you even

          4  have Bowery Bay Sewerage Treatment Plant there, you

          5  have the New York Power Authority's installation

          6  there, you have got LaGuardia Airport, you have got

          7  Grand Central Parkway, you got Big Alice, and now

          8  somebody else wants to put another power station in

          9  there too?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  State DEC

         11  actually has the responsibility to regulate that

         12  with the federal government. Obviously, the only

         13  thing that we really have any input into is the

         14  waste water treatment plants themselves, our own

         15  material.  We're comfortable we're not contributing,

         16  you know, to the load that you are talking about.

         17  We do our own monitoring, we will go out, as you can

         18  hear if there is a complaint that is made, we will

         19  go out, but our ability to make changes into the

         20  process that relates to the Federal Aviation

         21  Administration, the airports, power, and the rest of

         22  it, is really DEC's.  And while we work with them,

         23  we don't tell them what to do.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER AVALTRONI:  Let

         25  me just say, also, we have had the pleasure of
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          2  sitting with the Queens Borough President, we have

          3  been very active, even though as the Commissioner

          4  has suggested, we don't have responsibility, there

          5  have been significant air monitors put in the

          6  Borough of Queens to address some of the concerns

          7  that you articulated.  So while we didn't have the

          8  responsibility, I think we have not been silent and

          9  I think we have been very pushy in terms of getting

         10  DEC active in the process and they have worked very

         11  effectively with the Queens Borough President, and

         12  as you know well from some of our meetings.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Yes, I'm

         14  aware of the air monitoring units, and you know

         15  there is a lot of controversy around them too.  But

         16  I was thinking in particular the Clean Water, Clean

         17  Air Bond Act of 1996, if something could be done,

         18  because I think it goes beyond individual

         19  jurisdictions, to coordinate the effort, and to, you

         20  know, maybe do a creative plan, really study what

         21  the air quality is, we're very concerned about that

         22  air quality, not only there, but all over our City?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We agree and

         24  we're working with the State on that, but, again,

         25  that is primarily a State responsibility with the
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          2  federal government.  The answer is, we're involved

          3  with respect to our own facilities and facilities

          4  within the City or that are City- owned.  But,

          5  again, there is a whole lot more in the City that is

          6  not City- owned and City controlled, and, of course,

          7  that has to be put into the pie.

          8                 We're at the table, we will work with

          9  them, we understand it, but we don't control, you

         10  know, the whole destiny window.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  I'm aware

         12  of that, I'm talking about coordination.  Okay,

         13  thanks.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  In getting back

         15  to North River, we do have some documentation which

         16  we want to send to you, to get your evaluation.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  We would be very

         18  pleased to have it, but as - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I know you

         20  will.  I didn't want the letter to come to you as a

         21  surprise.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  It's a surprise

         23  to me that there are problems, that there are

         24  allegations of problems, because we haven't heard

         25  any of that at all.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well,

          3  evidently, I'm being told that the fact that the

          4  emissions exceed the acceptable levels come from a

          5  report of a consultant.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  None of our

          7  records indicate that whatsoever, and I don't know

          8  where the records would come from.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We will attempt

         10  to get it to you.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  I will be very

         12  attentive to it, once we get it, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I know you

         14  will.

         15                 Now my final area to talk about was

         16  the draft, the final drafting facility plant, we

         17  upgraded the Newtown Creek Water Pollution Control

         18  Plant.  Look on page 8 and line 20, presented to the

         19  New York State Department of Environmental

         20  Conversation in August of 1995, and that presented a

         21  two track approach based on two process alternatives

         22  that were accepted by New York State DEC. The two

         23  tracks included a step, denitrification design track

         24  1, and a biofiltered polishing design track 2.

         25  Subsequently, your agency submitted a third proposal
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          2  that will employ a modifier step feed process track

          3  3.  Could you give us the current status of the

          4  upgrade of the Newtown Creek Water Pollution Control

          5  Plant, and could you describe the track 3

          6  alternatives, and while your at it, give us a quick

          7  description of track 1 and 2, and what is the

          8  current status of the track 3 alternative, and what

          9  is the nature of DEC's, the State's objection to it?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  I'm

         11  Bob Garafolio, Deputy Commissioner for Environmental

         12  Engineering.

         13                 Track 1 is essentially a demolishing

         14  and rebuild track, it calls for the demolition of

         15  the entire plant and the complete rebuilding of it.

         16  It is the most expensive track, it is the track that

         17  would give us a treatment plant that is most similar

         18  to the other 13 plants that we currently operate

         19  around the City.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How old is the

         21  plant that you would demolish?

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  It's

         23  1967.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  Track
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          2  2 is a biofiltration plant.  Basically, that is the

          3  placement of biofiltration modules at the end of the

          4  plant, taking the effluent from the existing plant,

          5  running it through the biofiltration modules to

          6  provide additional pollutant removal and nitrogen

          7  reduction and bringing it up to state and federal

          8  required standards in that way.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Which system do

         10  you use at North River?

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  North

         12  River is the track 1 system, basically, it's a

         13  standard plant.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You rebuilt it?

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  The

         16  demolished and rebuild, yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right.  North

         18  River you didn't have a plant.  You didn't demolish

         19  any of it, you just built it.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  No,

         21  the demolish and rebuild track of Newtown Creek

         22  would give us a plant that is most similar to North

         23  River and the other 13 plants.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What is the

         25  method of filtration that you have in North River,
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          2  isn't it biofeed?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  No,

          4  it's not biofiltration, no.  No, it's a standard

          5  biological process, primary settlement, aeration,

          6  secondary settlement, solid settlement.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's not one of

          8  the three methods here?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  It's

         10  track 1.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Track 1, okay,

         12  it's the first one.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  The operational

         14  method of track 1 at Newtown Creek is the one that

         15  was used at North River.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's the

         17  denitrification system?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  There

         19  is no denitrification in North River, that is

         20  something that is additional at Newtown Creek

         21  because it does impact the East River, which impacts

         22  the Long Island Sound.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I thought that

         24  was track 1, I will have to get straighten out, but

         25  I thought that was the track 1 system?
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHAPIN:

          3  Track 1 is the most similar to what we have at our

          4  other plants, including North River, and 2 and 3 are

          5  both different as Bob is describing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  All right,

          7  continue, I'm sorry.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  Two

          9  is different, as I said, because of the

         10  biofiltration process that is tacked on at the end.

         11                 Track 3 is a new process that we

         12  essentially piloted and developed while we were

         13  conducting the track 1 and track 2 plans, it

         14  basically involves retrofitting in the existing

         15  tankage at the plant, putting baffles in the tanks,

         16  putting additional air sources in the tanks and

         17  creating nitrification and denitrification zones

         18  within the tanks.  It requires that we will not have

         19  to demolish major portions of the plant, there will

         20  be some additional construction at the plant.  It is

         21  the least expensive of the three tracks.

         22                 It is innovative, it is something

         23  that we did pilot and demonstrate at Newtown Creek.

         24  The State had concerns about it, we talked to them

         25  at great length, we did proposed to them that, as a
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          2  third alternative, that we would go with track 3.

          3  We felt comfortable with it, they had concerns about

          4  the reliability of it, certain months of the year it

          5  is difficult to maintain the process in the colder

          6  months under track 3.  They also had concerns about

          7  the operability of it because of the lack of primary

          8  tanks, there is additional grit that can get into

          9  the system.  It does require additional

         10  attentiveness from the operation staff and

         11  additional maintenance requirements, and they also

         12  had questions about track 3 does not provide the

         13  nitrogen reduction that the track 1 step

         14  denitrification would provide.

         15                 We proposed that in order to satisfy

         16  the Long Island Sound study, we would achieve that

         17  nitrogen reduction at other plants and we would

         18  compensate for it at other locations.  They had

         19  concerns about that, they were very concerned about

         20  how we were going to spend the savings that would be

         21  accrued between, if they approved of track 3 as

         22  opposed to track 1, and because of all of these

         23  factors they have rejected track 3, and directed

         24  that we proceed with either track 1 or track 2.

         25                 We are currently appealing that
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          2  decision, we are appealing to the court appointed

          3  referee to obtain his opinion and his recommendation

          4  as to which of the tracks, or whether we, in fact,

          5  should be allowed to proceed with track 3.  While we

          6  are doing this, we have modified the contracts that

          7  are currently going out to make them more track

          8  independent.  We have a major contract, we will have

          9  a bid opening on December 16th, that work will be

         10  consistent with either track 1, 2, or 3.

         11  Essentially we have deferred the necessity to decide

         12  between the tracks while we proceed with

         13  construction, that has allowed us to stay on track,

         14  to stay on schedule on the Consent Order meeting all

         15  of the Consent Order milestones.

         16                 And track 3, as I said is the

         17  cheapest and the quickest, it will allow us to

         18  complete the work more quickly and come into

         19  compliance with federal law, several years more

         20  quickly than track 1, and even a couple of years

         21  more quickly than track 2.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What is the

         23  status of the preceding before the Administrative

         24  Judge.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  Mark,
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          2  I will defer to Counsel on that.

          3                 MR. HOFFER:  The current status is

          4  that we are arguing with the State over whether the

          5  referee has jurisdiction to make a decision.  We

          6  both filed papers quite recently, Mr. Chairman, and

          7  the referee has got it under advisement at the

          8  moment.  If he rules that he has jurisdiction,

          9  unclear what the State would do, they might take it

         10  to the judge at that point, but obviously we want to

         11  get his jurisdiction settled - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Was the referee

         13  assigned to the case by the judge?

         14                 MR. HOFFER:  Yes, yes.  DEC is

         15  questioning whether the referee's authority extends

         16  to making a decision like this, defining that one -

         17   -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I find that most

         19  referee's make recommendations to the judges.  The

         20  judges make the decision.

         21                 MR. HOFFER:  Most referee's make

         22  recommendations and we think consistent with the

         23  terms of the original order, and with the way

         24  referee's have traditionally played their roles in

         25  cases, he does have authority to review this, to
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          2  make a finding, to make a recommendation.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right.

          4                 MR. HOFFER:  And if the

          5  recommendation is in our favor, which we believe it

          6  will, hopefully, DEC will see the light, if not, we

          7  will be going to the judge with that recommendation

          8  in hand, because we feel very strongly that saving

          9  money and saving time is in our best interest here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.  Please,

         11  keep us advised as to what is going on there.

         12                 MR. HOFFER:  Certainly, absolutely.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We just

         14  provoked a question in my mind, as I do know that a

         15  lot of the work on Newtown Creek was suspended while

         16  North River was being built, or the aeration tanks

         17  were being put in, to see whether or not we would

         18  learn from the situation at North River, what is the

         19  status of that?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  In

         21  fact, yes, the State rejected the design, the

         22  original design for Newtown Creek because it

         23  provided the deep tanks, the same deep aeration

         24  tanks that were judged to be part of the cause of

         25  the odor problem at North River.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you have a

          3  larger footprint in Newtown Creek than you have in

          4  North River?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  It is

          6  large- -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  One of the

          8  reasons for the, as I understood the reason why we

          9  have to have the deeper aeration tanks because the

         10  footprint was restricted.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  That

         12  is correct.  I mean, obviously you can get more flow

         13  into a smaller footprint if you have more volume in

         14  the tanks, that was one of the concerns at Newtown

         15  Creek.  We do have sufficient land at Newtown Creek

         16  to build the shallower tanks, so, you know, we will

         17  not building tanks at the same depth as at North

         18  River.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That may

         20  alleviate some of the concerns with respect to the

         21  odors.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GARAFOLIO:  Yes,

         23  we do not have concerns over the odors, they will

         24  also be providing odor control for all of the odor

         25  producing systems at Newtown Creek.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, thank

          3  you.  Are there any further questions?  There being

          4  none, those questions which we haven't reached, we

          5  will get in touch with you, and you will give us an

          6  attempted answer.

          7                 I thank you very much, once again,

          8  for giving us this learning experience.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MIELE:  Our pleasure to

         10  be here.  We thank you very much, and again, happy

         11  holidays to all.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Happy holidays

         13  to you, all of you.  Meeting adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 1:00 p.m.)
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